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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of the ICODEX
PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 4'" day of August, 2025 at
4:00 p.m. at Office - 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar,
Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India. The meeting can also be attended via virtual meeting
platform for those who are unable to physically attend at the registered office. The details of
the virtual meeting platform will be shared separately to all attendees to discuss the following
agenda items:

Ordinary Businesses:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company comprising the
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit & Loss and Notes thereto for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2025 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’
thereon.

Proposed Resolution

To consider, modify and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025,
including the audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the

year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors (the Board) and Auditors thereon
be adopted.”

For ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

@

MOHINI AJAY TALHAR
Company Secretary
Membership Number ACS 62080
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NOTES:

1. Pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 (SS 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India the route map for reaching the meeting venue is annexed.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on a poll on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
Proxies, in order to be effective should be duly filled, stamped, and signed, and must be
received at the registered office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before this

Annual General Meeting.

3. Member/Proxy should bring duly filled attendance slip enclosed herewith to attend the
Meeting.

4, Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at

the meeting.

ROUTE MAP FOR FORTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED:
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DIRECTOR REPORT

To,

The Members,

ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar,
Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.

(CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870)

Your directors have great pleasure in presenting the Board Report along with Audited Statement of
Accounts and the Auditor’s Report of the company for the financial year ended 31" March 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

Particulars As at the end of current | As at the end of current
reporting period | reporting period
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
(Amount in Rs.) {Amount in Rs.)
Total Income / Revenue from Operations 21,87,73,719.11 10,40,07,400.05
Other Income 20,14,036.15 59.08,721.81
Less: Depreciation 59,21,042.81 42,24,775.82
Less: Other Expenses 8,66,91,298.09 6,30,92,220.78
Profit or Loss before Exceptional and 12,81,75,414.36 4,25,98,125.26
Extraordinary items and tax
Less: Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00
Less: Extraordinary ltems 0.00 0.00
Profit or Loss before Tax 12,81,75,414.36 4,25,98,125.26
Less: Current Tax 2,37.,74,170.00 73,55,434.00
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement/Utilised 1,24,24,375.00 (66,50,629.00)
Less: Deferred Tax 23,70,967 .42 (7,04,272.97)
Less: Excess provisions of earller years 43,507.99 (29,35,751.00)
Profit or Loss After Tax 8,95,62,393.95 4,55,32,344.23

2. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS — PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

Revenue from operations stood at % 21,87,73,719.11/- lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025.

3. 5TATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS & CHANGE IN BUSINESS:

During the period under review, the Company has changed its status from a Private Limited Company
to a Public Limited Company to enable better access to funding avenues and strengthen corporate
governance. A Special Resolution in this regard was passed by the shareholders in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 25™ June 2024, and the necessary approval was obtained from the Registrar
of Companies, Pune,

4. DIVIDEND:

No Dividend was declared far the current for the period.
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5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend
declared and paid last year.

6. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND

OUTGO:

(1) Conservation of Energy:

The company's business is not energy intensive. Company believes in prudent use of the scarce
precious resources and Is supportive of the energy mechanism.

fi)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.

Mot Applicable

(i

The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of
energy.

Mot Applicable

(iii)

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

Not Applicable

(2) Technology Absorption:

The Company has not incurred any expenditure towards research & development activities. Also,
the company has not laid any future plan or action towards R&D.

(i)

The efforts made towards technology absorption

Not Applicable

(ii)

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development, or import substitution

Not Applicable

(iii)

In case of imported technology (imported during last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-
a) The detail of technology imported

Not Applicable

b} The Year of Import

c) Whether technology has been fully absorbed If not fully absorbed,
areas where

d) absorption has not taken place, and the reason thereof

{iv)

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Mot Applicable

(3) Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo:

Foreign exchange earnings:

Particulars Current year [Amount in | Previous year [Amount in
Rs.] Rs.]
Export of Services 9,14,52,299.56 10,40,07,000.00
Foreign Exchange Gain 0.00 33,94,000.00
Unadjusted Foreign Gain/Loss 0.00 0.00
Foreign Exchange Outgo:
Particulars Current year [Amount in | Previous year [Amount in

Rs.]

Rs.]

Foreign Expenses

Nil

Nil
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7. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR _ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has entered into various Related Parties Transactions as defined under Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 with related parties as defined under Section 2 (76) of the said Act. Further
all the necessary details of transaction entered with the related parties are attached herewith in form
no. AOC-2 for your kind perusal and information, said is annexed and mark as (ANNEXURE-I).

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

Subsequent to the end of the financial year on March 31, 2025, the Company filed its Draft Red
Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on February 11,
2025, in connection with its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPQ).

The filing of the DRHP represents a significant commitment by the Company toward raising equity
capital from the public and transitioning to a listed entity. This step is considered material, as it directly
impacts the Company’s financial position and strategic outlook. The proceeds from the proposed IPO,
upon successful completion, will enable the Company to strengthen its capital base, support future
growth initiatives, and enhance overall financial flexibility.

Accordingly, the filing of the DRHP is acknowledged as a material change and commitment occurring

after the close of the financial year and before the date of this report.

9. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has not formulated a formal Risk Management Policy pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company recognizes the importance of identifying and addressing
risks that may affect its business, operations, and financial condition,

As part of its Initial Public Offering (IPO) process, the Company has disclosed a comprehensive list of
risk factors in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) filed with the Securities and Exchange Board
of India [SEBI). These risk factors reflect the Company's internal and external business vulnerabilities
and include, among others:

+ High dependence on a few key customers, including a single overseas client contributing
significantly to revenue;

« Exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations without any hedging mechanism in place;

» Vulnerability to regulatory changes affecting offshore outsourcing and international trade
policies;

+ Risk of termination of client contracts on short notice;

+ |Inadequate ownership of business premises, currently operating out of a co-working space;

Dependency on promoters and senior management for business continuity;

Lack of an IT audit and potential cyber threats or data breaches;

« Competitive pressures in the publishing services and IT-enabled service sectors;
#» Historical delays in statutory compliance (G5T, TDS);
# Risk related to transition from a private to a public company and associated regulatory
updates.
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The Company remains committed to gradually developing an integrated Risk Management Framewaork
in line with best practices as it progresses toward becoming a listed entity.

10. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The Board noted that in terms of the second proviso to Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 3(2) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, where the
amount required to be spent by a company on C5R does not exceed %50 lakh, the constitution of a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee is not mandatory. In such cases, the functions of the
CSR Committee are to be discharged directly by the Board of Directors.

The implementation of CSR activities, in accordance with applicable laws, shall be directly overseen

by the Board and will be reported in detail in the Board's Report for the financial year 2025-26,

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

12, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company during the year under
review.

13. DEPOSITS:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review,

14, ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was cbserved.

15. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS:

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company's operations in future.
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16. AUDITORS AND ITS REPORT:

JIMMEK & CO., Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration Number: 120459W, were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
to be held in the year 2029. Accordingly, the appointment of IMMEK & CO., Chartered Accountants
having Firm Registration Number: 120459W, shall continue to act as Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

Qualifications, Reservations or Adverse Remarks or Disclaimer, if any:

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks provided by the statutory auditors in
its report for the year ended 31 March 2025.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
the requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company, as it does

not fall within the prescribed class of companies as specified under Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

18. COST RECORDS:

Maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not required as the company does not fall under the ambit of prescribed class
of companies who are required to make and maintain cost records.

19. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit its responsibility Statement:

1) In the preparation of annual accounts for the Year ended 31 March 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material.

2) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and have
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year 31 March 2025 and
the Profit and loss for that period.

3) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with provision of the companies act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

4) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2025 on a
going concern basis,
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20. MEETINGS:

During the financial year under review, the Company convened the following meetings in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder:

A. Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met 14 times during the financial year 2024-25. The details of meetings held
and director attendance are as follows:

5. Date of Total Number of directors associated as | Number of directors | % of
No. | meeting on the date of meeting attended attendance
1 05.06.2024 | 2 2 100
2 13.06.2024 | 2 2 100
3 14.06.2024 | 4 2 50
4 28.06.2024 | 4 2 50
5 10.07.2024 | 4 2 50
B 20.07.2024 | 4 4 100
7 28.08.2024 | 4 4 100
8 28.09.2024 | 4 4 100
9 30.10.2024 | 4 4 100
10 30.10.2024 | 4 i 100
11 05.12.2024 | 4 4 100
12 22.12.2024 | 4 4 100
13 05.02.2025 | 5 5 100
14 11.02.2025 | 5 5 100
B. General Meetings
The Company held the following General Meetings:
Type of meeting Date of Total Number of | Attendance
meeting Members entitled | Number of o of total
to members shareholding
attend meeting attended
Extra Ordinary 13.06.2024 P 2 100
General Meeting
Extra Ordinary 25.06.2024 8 8 100
General Meeting
Extra Ordinary 29.08.2024 11 6 890.3
General Meeting
Annual General 28.09.2024 12 6 BR.52
Meeting
Extra Ordinary 30.10.2024 12 5 97.45
General Meeting
Extra Ordinary 08.12.2024 12 6 95.19
General Meeting
Extra Ordinary 24.12.2024 12 7 90.98
General Meeting
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C. Committee Meetings -
The following Committee Meetings were held during the year;
S. Type of Date of Total Number | Attendance
No. | meeting meeting of Members as | Number of | % of attendance
on the date of members
the I'I'lE'Etil'llg attended
1 NOMINATION & 28.08.2024 |3 3 100
REMUMNERATION COMMITTEE
2 AUDIT COMMITTEE 28.09.2024 |3 3 100
3 AUDIT COMMITTEE 30.10.2024 | 3 3 100
4 NOMINATION & 05.12.2024 |3 3 100
REMUMNERATION COMMITTEE
5 AUDIT COMMITTEE 05.12.2024 | 3 3 100
= NOMINATION & 22.12.2024 |3 3 100
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
7 AUDIT COMMITTEE 05.02.2025 |3 3 100

21. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, the following changes took place in the composition of the Board of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

1.

Mr. Venkata Subbarao Kalva (DIN: 08043883) and Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududur (DIN: D9067581)
were appointed as Additional Directors of the Company with effect from June 5, 2024. Their
designation was subsequently changed to Independent Directors, as approved by the members
at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on June 13, 2024,

Mr. Chetan Shankarlal Soni (DIN: 00734127) and Mr. Kamalakkanan Govindara] (DIN: 08144289}
were re-appointed as Whole-time Directors of the Company at the Board Meeting held on August
28, 2024,

The designation of Mr. Kamalakkanan Govindaraj (DIN: 08144289) was changed from Whole-time
Director to Managing Director with effect from December 5, 2024, as approved by the Board. This
change was subsequently ratified by the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
December 8, 2024,

Mr. Anand Pravin Pande (DIN: 07245254) was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company at the Board Meeting held on December 22, 2024, which was approved by the members
at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 24, 2024,

In accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company appointed
the following Whaole-time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) with effect from August 28, 2024:

1,

2,

Mr, Vaibhav Ashok Rupnar — appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company.

Ms. Mohini Ajay Talhar — appointed as Company Secretary (CS) of the Company.
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22. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have submitted declarations that each of them meets
the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed
thereunder,

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their
status as Independent Directors of the Company and the Board is satisfied with the integrity, expertise,
and experience (including proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules
thereunder) of all Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule
& of the Companies (Appointment and CQualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
Independent Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors.

23. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:

A gualified and independent Audit Committee has been set up by the Board in compliance with the
requirements of and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 of the Act.

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name of Director Designation in Committee Nature of Directorship
Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududur Chairperson Independent Director
Mr. Venkata Subbarao Kalva Member Independent Director
Mr, Kamalakkannan Govindaraj | Member Managing Director

The Audit Committee met [4] times during the year under review. The necessary quorum was present
at all meetings.

The Audit Committee has adopted a Charter for its functioning. The primary objective of the
Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management's financial reporting
process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity,
and quality of financial reporting.

During the vyear under review, the Board accepted all recommendations made by the Audit
Committee,

24. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
formulated a policy on the appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP), and Senior Management.,

The policy includes:

» (Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of directors.
» Evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the Board.

Formulation of a diverse Board.

Appointment and removal of directors and KMPs.
» Remuneration structure based on Industry benchmarks and individual contributions.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), constituted as per Section 178(1), recommends
appointment and remuneration of directors and KMPs. The Committee comprises Mr. Venkata
Subbarao Kalva [Chairman), Mrs. Shilpa Kiran Gududur, and Mr. Anand Pravin Pande.

25. VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY):

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism to provide a formal
mechanism to the Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics.

The mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors who
avail the mechanism. The Audit Committee oversees the functioning of this mechanism.

Protected disclosures can be made through multiple channels (phone, email, portal, fax, post), and
the identity of the whistle-blower is kept confidential.

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at
https://icodexsolutions,com/policy-and-disclosures/

26. ANN PE E EVALUATI F THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRE £

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(2), Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company
has undertaken a formal annual evaluation process to assess the performance of the Board as a whole,
its various Committees, and individual Directors, including the Chairperson, Managing Director,
Whole-time Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

1) Evaluation Process and Criteria

The performance evaluation was carried out through a structured and comprehensive questionnaire-
based feedback mechanism, which was formulated in line with the evaluation criteria approved by the
Board and as guided by Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. The criteria for evaluation
encompassed a broad range of parameters including:

« For the Board: structure and composition, effectiveness of governance processes, quality of
deliberations, strategic direction, and decision-making.

« For Committees: effectiveness of meetings, clarity of roles and responsibilities, adherence to
terms of reference, and contribution to Board functioning.

» For Directors: preparedness, active participation, ethical standards, strategic inputs,
governance mindset, and alignment with Company values.

The feedback was obtained individually from Directors and compiled in confidence to promote honest
and constructive reflections,

2) Findings and Outcome

The outcome of the evaluation exercise indicated that the Board and its Committees are well-
structured, professionally managed and function in a highly collaborative and compliant manner,
Directors, both executive and non-executive, demonstrated high levels of integrity, commitment, and
knowledge of their roles.

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
Phone: +91 020 45012988, +91 885 690 7928 www icodexselutions.com Email: connect@icodexsolutions.com




(i) icopex

¢ The Chairman was rated highly for his leadership, independence of judgment, stakeholder
engagement, and ability to foster a culture of open and effective Board discussions.

¢« The Managing Director and Whole-time Director were commended for their effective
translation of wvision into operational goals, strategic foresight, team leadership, and
commitment to governance standards.

+ The Independent Directors were appreciated for their objectivity, upholding of ethical
standards, insights into risk and performance management, and active contribution to
deliberations. They played a vital role in enhancing the Board's decision-making and
maintaining transparency.

« The Non-Executive Directors were recognized for their thorough understanding of the
business, constructive engagement, and strategic contributions that enriched the
deliberations of the Board.,

3) Conclusion

The Board believes that this annual performance evaluation has provided a valuable opportunity to
assess its effectiveness and that of its members. It also reinforces the Company’s commitment to good
corporate governance, transparency, and continuous impraovement,

The Board is of the opinion that the evaluation framework adopted is appropriate to the Company’s
current size, scale, and operations and continues to be a meaningful toel to enhance Board dynamics
and performance,

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE [PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL] ACT, 2013:

The Company has an Internal Complaints Committee [ICC] in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal] Act, 2013. The
following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed-off during the year
31* March 2025.

Mo of complaints received: No Complaints Received

No of complaints disposed-off: Not Applicable

28. ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a), the draft Annual Return of the Company prepared as per Section 92(3)
of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is hosted on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at https://www.icodexsolutions.com/investors/ . In terms of Rules 11 and 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return shall be filed with the
Registrar of Companies, with prescribed timelines.

29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has currently mandated compliance with the Secretarial
Standards on board meetings and general meetings. During the year under review, the Company has
complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards.
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30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors wish to convey their deep appreciation to all the employees, customers, vendors,
investors, and consultants/advisors of the Company for their sincere and dedicated services as well as
their collective contribution to the Company's performance.

By order of the Board of Directors
ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDARAJ CHETAN SHANKARLAL 5QN

Managing Director & Chairman Whole-time director
DIN: 08144289 DIN: 00734127
Date: 08/07/2025
Place: Pune
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ANNEXURE |

FORM NO AOC-2

[As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2025]
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1)
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not an arm’s length basis:

Sr. | Particulars Details

No.

a. Name of the related party and nature of
relationship

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/
transactions

C. Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/ transactions

d. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

e. | Date(s) of approval by the Board

f. Amount paid as advances, if any

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited

Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sr. | Particulars Details

No.

a. Name of the related | Indira Govindraj Kalaivani Kanimozhi Liberty Kala Chetan | Premkumar | Spark Advisors
party and nature of (Mother of Majumdar (Sister of Kamalakkanan Soni Chetan Soni | and Business
relationship KAMALAKKANNAN | (Sister of KAMALAKKANNAN | (Spouse of (Daughter of | (Son of Solutions Private

GOVINDARAI) KAMALAKKANNAN | GOVINDARAI) KAMALAKKANNAN | CHETAN CHETAN Limited
GOVINDARAJ) GOVINDARAJ) SHANKARLAL | SHANKARLAL | (Enterprise with a
SONI) SONI) commaon director
- ANAND PRAVIN

PANDE)

b. Mature of contracts/ | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional | Professional | Professional Fees
arrangements/ Paid Paid Paid Paid Fees Paid Fees Paid Paid
transactions

C. Duration of the NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
contracts/arrangement
transactions

d. Salient terms of the | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional Fees | Professional | Professional | Professional Fees
contracts or Paid of Rs. | Paid of Rs. | Paid of Rs. | Paid of Rs. | Fees Paid of | Fees Paid of | Paid of Rs.
arrangements or 9,00,000/- 9,00,000/- 15,30,612/- 12,00,000/- Rs. Rs. 9,00,000/-
transactions including 12,00,000/- | 12,05,192/-
the value, if any

e. | Date(s)of approval by | 05/06/2024 05/06/2024 05/06/2024 05/06/2024 05/06/2024 | 05/06/2024 | 22/12/2024
the Board

f. Amount paid as NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

advances, if any

Phone: +91 020 45012988, +91 885 690 7928 www.icodexsolutions.com
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By order of the Board of Directors
ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

B s AL Qs

KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDARAJ CHETAN SHANKARLAL
Managing Director & Chairman Whole-time director
DIN: 08144289 DIN: 00734127
Date: 08/07/2025
Place: Pune
iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72500PN2018PLC176870
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Annexure Il
Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return

[As on the financial year ended 31" March, 2025]
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule (1) of the Companies [Management and Administration Rules] 2014]

I. Registration and other details:

1. | Corporate Identification Number (CIN) U72900PN2018PLC176870
2. | Registration No. 176870
3. | Incorporation Date 28/05/2018
4. | Name of the Company ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
5. | Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited By Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company
6. | Address of the Registered Office of the Company 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune -
411014, Maharashtra, India,
7. | Whether listed NO
8. | Name, Address and Contact Details of the Registrar and | CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
Transfer Agent, if any NO-1, CLUB HOUSE ROAD
SUBRAMANIAN BUILDING, 5TH FLOOR
CHENNAI-600002
Tel. 044-40020700/40020710.
E Mail: unitll@cameoindia.com

Il. Principal business activities of the Company:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the Company
services
: Publishi i i
1 ubiish:fng of operating business and other 58202 100%
applications
iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870
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Il. Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies:
Sr. No. | Name and Address of the Company | CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate % of Shares held | Applicable Section
1.

IV. Shareholding Pattern: [Equity Share Capital Break-up as percentage of Total Equity]

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category
Shareholders

of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% Change during
the year

% of Total
Shares

Demat Total

Physical

Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt.
c) State Govt.(s)
d) Bodies Corp

e) Banks/FI

flAny Other

1000 1000 100%

10800900 - 10800900

88.24%

(11.76%)

Sub-total (A) (1):-

1000 100%

10800900 - 10800900

88.24%

(11.76%)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI's-Individual

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
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b) Other Individuals

c¢) Bodies Corp

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any Other

Sub-total (A) (2):-

-

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A)

=(A)(1)HA)(2)

1000

100% | 10800900

- 10800900

(11.76%)

B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fi

c) Central Govt,
d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Fil's

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.

Phone: 020-48623072, 020-46399047

www.icodexsolutions.com

CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870

Email: connect@icodexsolutions.com



iICODEX

PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS

i) Others(specify) . - - - - - + - .
Foreign Company

Sub-total(B) (1): - - - - - - - - - =

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp

i) Indian - - - - 684861 684861 5.59% 5.59%

ii) Overseas - & & = - = = - -

b) Individuals

i) Individual - - - - 28700 - 28700 0.23% 0.23%
shareholders holding

nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii} Individual - 5 - -| 726559 a 726559 5.94% 5.94%
shareholders holding

nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others(specify)

Sub-total(B)(2):- - z F -| 1440120 1440120 11.77% 11.77%

Total Public 1440120 1440120 11.77% 11.77%
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) - - - -

C. Shares held by

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176270
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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Custodian  faor
&ADRs

GDRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

1000

100%

12241020

12241020

100%

ii) Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group):

Sl. | Shareholder’'s Name | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No
Mo. of Shares | % of totalshares | % of shares | No.ofShares | % of total | % of shares | % change in the
of the Company | Pledged/encum shares of the | Pledged/encu | shareholding
bered to total Company mbered to | during the year
shares total shares
1: KAMALAKKANNAN 500 50% = 5364447 43.82% - (6.18%)
GOVINDARAJ
2. CHETAN 500 50% - 5364447 43.82% (6.18%)
SHANKARLAL SONI
3 INDIRA GOVIND - - - 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
4 KALAIVANI = = = 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
MAJUMDAR
5 KANIMOZHI - - - 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
5] ARTI CHETAN SONI = - - 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
T PREMKUMAR - - - 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
CHETAN SONI
8 KALA CHETAN SONI - . - 12001 0.10% - 0.10%
Total 1000 100% - 10800900 88.24% - (11.76%)

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (including Promoter Group): [please specify, if there is no change]: There are changes during the year in the
Promoter's shareholding.

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding at the during the year
No. No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of the
Company Company
1 KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDARAJ
At the beginning of the year 500 50% 500 50%
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares | (3) - 497 .
14/06/2024
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares | (50) - 447 -
10/07/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus | 5364000 - 5364447 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 5364447 43.82% 5364447 43.82%
2 CHETAN SHANKARLAL SONI
At the beginning of the year 500 50% 500 50%
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares | (3) - 497 -
14/06/2024
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares | (50) - 447 -
10/07/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus | 5364000 - 5364447 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 5364447 43.82% 5364447 43.82%
3 INDIRA GOVIND
At the beginning of the year . - - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%
4 KALAIVANI MAJUMDAR
At the beginning of the year = =

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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L.
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%
KANIMOZHI
At the beginning of the year - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%
ARTI CHETAN SONI
At the beginning of the year - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%
PREMKUMAR CHETAN SONI
At the beginning of the year - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%
KALA CHETAN SONI
At the beginning of the year - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 1 - 1 -
14/06/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 12000 - 12001 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 12001 0.10% 12001 0.10%

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders: [other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of ADR's/GDR's]

Sr'
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding at the during the year

For each of the top ten shareholders

MNo. of Shares

% of total shares of the
Company

Mo. of Shares

% of total shares of the
Company

COMERCINATE ENTERPRISES
PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year

Increase due to Transfer of Shares
10/07/2024

100

100

Decrease due to Transfer of Shares
20/07/2024

(31)

69

Increase due to Allotment of Bonus
Shares 30/10/2024

828000

828069

Decrease due to further sale of shares
during the year

(486984)

341085

At the end of the year (or on date of
separation, if separated during the
year)

341085

2.79%

341085

2.79%

SURESH KUMAR AGARWAL

At the beginning of the year

Increase due to Transfer of Shares
20/07/2024

25

25

Increase due to Allotment of Bonus
Shares 30/10/2024

300000

300025

At the end of the year (or on date of
separation, if separated during the
year)

300025

2.45%

300025

2.45%

PARAS CREDIT CAPITAL PRIVATE
LIMITED

At the beginning of the year

Increase due to Allotment of Shares
as right issue 28/09/2024

20

20

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited
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Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 240000 - 240020 -
Shares 30/10/2024

At the end of the year (or on date of 240020 1.96% 240020 1.96%
separation, if separated during the
year)

UMANG M. SHAH

At the beginning of the year - E - -

Bought during the year 160000 - 160000 -

At the end of the year (or on date of 160000 1.31% 160000 1.31%
separation, if separated during the
year)

AUTOLEC INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE
LIMITED

At the beginning of the year - - < .

Bought during the year 103756 - 103756 -

At the end of the year (or on date of 103756 0.85% 103756 0.85%
separation, if separated during the
year)

VIDISHA SHETH

At the beginning of the year - - L 5

Bought during the year 56470 - 56470 -

At the end of the year (or on date of 56470 0.46% 56470 0.46%
separation, if separated during the
year)

MITESH CHANDRAKANT SHETH

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Bought during the year 47058 - 47058 -

At the end of the year (or on date of 47058 0.38% 47058 0.38%
separation, if separated during the
year)

RISHIT BHODATRIA

At the beginning of the year - - - .

Bought during the year 25600 - 25600 -

At the end of the year (or on date of 25600 0.21% 25600 0.21%
separation, if separated during the
year)

iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870
Registered Office Address: 102, First Floor, Suman Business Park, Kalyani Nagar, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014, Maharashtra, India.
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CHIRAG SUDESH ARYA

At the beginning of the year

Bought during the year

24000

24000

At the end of the year (or on date of
separation, if separated during the
year)

24000

0.20%

24000

0.20%

10.

MUDIT AGARWAL

At the beginning of the year

Bought during the year

24000

24000

At the end of the year (or on date of
separation, if separated during the
year)

24000

0.20%

24000

0.20%

11.

SARTHAK CHETAN 5HAH

At the beginning of the year

Bought during the year

17400

17400

At the end of the year (or on date of
separation, if separated during the
year)

17400

0.14%

17400

0.14%
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

sl. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding at the during the year
No.
No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of the
Company Company
1. KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDARAJ
At the beginning of the year 500 50% 500 50%
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares (3) - 497 -
14/06/2024
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares (50) - 447 -
10/07/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 5364000 - 5364447 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 5364447 43.82% 5364447 43.82%
2 CHETAN SHANKARLAL SONI
At the beginning of the year 500 50% 500 50%
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares (3) - 497 -
14/06/2024
Decrease due to Transfer of Shares (50) - 447 B
10/07/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 5364000 - 5364447 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 5364447 43.82% 5364447 43.82%
3. ANAND PRAVIN PANDE
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Increase due to Transfer of Shares 6 - 6 -
20/07/2024
Increase due to Allotment of Bonus 72000 - 72006 -
Shares 30/10/2024
At the end of the year 72006 0.59% 72006 0.59%
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V. Indebtedness: (Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment)

Secured Loans excluding | Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the year
(i) Principal Amount 87,82,138.74 8,746.00 0.00 87,90,884.74
(ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i} Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 87,82,138.74 8,746.00 0.00 87,90,884.74
Change in indebtedness during the year
* Addition 29,14,86,287.77 2,04,789.50 0.00 29,16,91,077.27
* Reduction 27,03,78,501.83 2,13,535.50 0.00 27,05,92,037.33
Net Change 2,11,07,785.94 (8,746.00) 0.00 2,10,99,039.94
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
(i} Principal Amount 2,98,89,924.68 0.00 0.00 2,98,89,924.68
(ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,98,89,924.68 0.00 0.00 2,98,89,924.68
VI. Remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
No.
KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDARAJ CHETAN SHANKARLAL SONI
1 Gross salary 30,00,000.00 27,00,000.00 57,00,000.00
(a) Salary as per provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 0.00 0.00 0.00
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00
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3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00
4, Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 30,00,000.00 27,00,000.00 57,00,000.00
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No.
ANAND PRAVIN PANDE VENKATA SUBBARAO SHILPA KIRAN
KALVA GUDUDUR
3. Independent Directors
= Fee for attending board & - 2,80,000.00 2,80,000.00 5,60,000.00
committee meetings
*  Commissian
=  Others, please specify
Total (1) - 2,80,000.00 2,80,000.00 5,60,000.00
4. Other Non-Executive Directors
= Fee for attending board 50,000.00 - - 50,000.00
committee meetings z = - -
=  Commission 5 - P -
*  QOthers, please specify
Total (2) 50,000.00 - - 50,000.00
Total (B)=(1+2) 50,000.00 2,80,000.00 2,80,000.00 6,10,000.00
Total Managerial 50,000.00 2,80,000.00 2,80,000.00 6,10,000.00
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act - * - -
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C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD:
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1. Gross salary - 1,75,000.00 7,36,667.00 9,11,667.00
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in - -
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- ) _ ) )
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section g 2 . -
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
-others, specify
5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total 1,75,000.00 7,36,667.00 9,11,667.00
iCodex Publishing Solutions Limited CIN: U72900PN2018PLC176870
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Vil. Penalties/Punishment/Compounding of offences: Not applicable
Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ COURT] if any (give Details)
Compounding fees
imposed
A. Company
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

C. Other officers in default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

By order of the Board of Directors

ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Hoionr.

KAMALAKKANNAN GOVINDA
Managing Director & Chairman

DIN: 08144289
Date: 08/07/2025
Place: Pune

Whole-time director
DIN: 00734127
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A JMMK & Co.

INDIA  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITCRS® REPORT

Ta,
The Members of Icodex Publishing Solutions Limited
{Formerly known as lcodex Publishing Solutions Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of lcodex Publlshing Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as lcodex Publishing Solutions Private Limited) ("the Company"}, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
gforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner
so required and give a trua and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in Indig, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2025, and its Profit for the year ended
on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards an Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act Qur responsibiliies under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Respensibility for the Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report.
YWe are independent of the Company in adeordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) tagether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled gur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We beligve that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial staterments.

Key audit matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per Standard on Auditing {SA} 701 "Communicating Key Audit matters
in the Auditor's Report”, are not applicable to the Company as the Company is an unlisted company.

Information Other than thie Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other infarmation. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

The Directars’ Repor, is expected to be macde available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Qur
opinion on the financial statements does not caver the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion therecn. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other infarmation identified above when it becornes available and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements ar our
knewledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board's Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent therein, we ara

required to communicate the matter (o those charged with govemance and describe actions applicak‘ye/,,.--"—'*f’" =
4 ﬂ‘:
4

in the applicable laws and regulations. .ﬁj__’f_‘_:g
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's board of directors are respaonsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with reapect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in india, including the accounting standards specified under section 133
of the Act together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules.2014 (as
amended}. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accardance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatament, whether
due to fraud or emraor.

In preparing the financial statemeants, managerment is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a geing concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the aoing concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company or
o ceasze aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to oblain reazonable assurance about whether the financial staterments as a whole
are free from materfal misstatement, whether dus to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurancs but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifying and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional ormissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtaining an understanding of internal financial contral relevant to the audit in order design audit
procedures that are approprigte in the circumstances. Under section 143{3){i} of the Act, we are alsg
respansible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate intemal financial contrals
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Caonclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the relatad disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our gpinign. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future gvents or conditions may cause the Company to cegseg to continue as a going
concern, ;i =
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Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclesures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

Wea communicate with thoge charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alsa provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all relationships and other
matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguartds.

Report on Qther Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Reporty Order, 2020 {"the Crder") issusd by the Central
Gavernment in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on the
matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

8. W¥e have sought and obtained all the information and explanaticns which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit,

h. Incouropinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Compaty so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Logs and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards prescribad
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basiz of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March 2025
tzken on records by the Board Directors, none of the disqualified as on 31* March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2} of the Act.

f With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and operaiing effectiveness of such conircls, refer to ocur separate report in
“Annexure B”,

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 187(18) of the Act, as amended, "

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
aceordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule W of the Act. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 187¢ 16} which are required to
be commented upon by us.

h.  With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Ruile
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of aur infarmation and according o the explanations given to us!




i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on it's Financial Pasition in its
financial statement-Refer note 25 of the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresesable losses.

iil. Therewers no amounts, which, were required to be transfamed, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Campany.

. a The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or lnaned
or invested (aither from borrowed funds or share premium ar any ather sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities
{"Intermediarizs"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intsrmediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company ["Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

b. The Management has represented, that, o the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have been received by the
Company from any personis) or entity(ies}. including foreign entities {"Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other parsons or entiies identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered ressonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
belisve that the representations under sub-clause {a) and (b contain any material
misstatement.

¥. The dividend has neither declared nor paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on cur examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. As, no separate
audit trail report is available from the system, our test check examination is done at the
entry level. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with,

For JMMK & Co.

{Earier known as JMK & Cal)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 120458W

L.

’ i blumbai \O'N
/-ﬂ':": :r:_ i
Jitendra Doshl (o2, \F 20450V &
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 1 151274
Date : 08072025 UDIN:25151274BMIILOA201
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Anngxure A Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” in the Independant Auditer's Report of even date o the members of leodex Publishing
Solutions Limited (farmerly known as leodex Publishing Sclutions Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31= March 2025

fit
fa) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment.

{b) During the year, the property, plant and equipment of the Company have been physically
verified by the management and as informed, no material discrepancies have been noticed
on such verification. In our opinicn, this frequency of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the recaords examined by
us the company does not hava any immovable properies under property, plant and
equipment, accardingly, the provisions of the clause 3{i) {c) of the order is not applicable
ta the company.

{d) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(&} Thers are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any

benami property under the prohibitian of Benami Property Transaction Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

il {a} The company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{iida) of the order s not applicables to the Company.

fb} The company has not been sanction working capital limit in excess of Re.5 Crore. In
aggregate, from banks or financial institution during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets consequently, clause 3(ii] (b) of the order is not applicable
to the company

{iii} {a} During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
provided guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiij{a) of the Order
ig not applicable to the Company.

{b) During the year the company has not made any investment and has not provided any
guarantess, sscurity and not granted loans and advances in the nature of Ioans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{iii)(b) of the order is not applicable to company

(¢} The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Lishility Fartnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clauses 3{iiXc), 3iiMdy and 3iii){e) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

{iv} In gur apinian and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
not made any investment, provided any securities and guarantee or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured during the year in respect of which
provision of section 185 and 186 are applicakle and accordingly the requirement to report an
clause 3(iv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{v} The Gompany has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits with in the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the companies
Act and the Rules made thersunder ,to the extent applicable Accordingly , the requirementto -
report on clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable to the company | A
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{vi}

{vil)

{1

fix)

(x}

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under section 148
{1} of the companizs Act, 2013, for the services rendered by the company, accordingly the
reguirement to repert an clause 3 (vi} of the Crder is not applicable to the company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employess' state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutery dues applicable to . According fo the information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, ne undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to ug and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not sumendered or
disclosad any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a) Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and
reports examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or other barmowings ar in the payment of interest thereon to any lender including the loans
and interest are repayable on demand.

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions
or government or any govemment authority.

(¢} The company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3{ix)c) of the Order is not applicable tn the Company.

{d} On an cverall Examination of the financial statements of the Company, prima facie, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) According to the information and explanation provided to us and an examination of
records, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or agsociate companies,

(&) The Company has nof raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer {including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3ixi(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of equily shares.in our opinign
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has compiled
with they requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act and the rules farmed
thersunder with respect to same. Further, the amounts so raised were used for the pupose
far which the funds were raised, though ideal funds which were not required for immediate
utilization have been invested in readily realisable liguid investments.

{a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
naticed or reportad during the course of the audit.

(b} According to the information and explanations aiven to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Cenfral
Gavernment.

“."' i

(£} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received__,gg:f',;;\:_t,;'--

by the Company during the year. {7 7 seniNoa
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(xii)

(xiii}

{(xiv)

fxv)

(v

Vi)

(xviii}

[xix}

Agcording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company,
Accordingly, clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companias Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The company is not coverad by section 138 of companies Act 2013, related to appointment of
internal auditors of the company. Thersfore, the company is not required to appointed any
internal auditors. Therefore, the provisions of clauss 3f{xiv) of order are not applicable to the
company.

The Company has not entered inte any non- cash transactions with its dirctors or personsg
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3 (xv) of the Crder nat
applicable to the Company.

fa} The provisions of section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 (2 of 1934} ars not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvii{a} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Cedificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Barik of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834,

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

fd} There is no Core Investment Company a5 a part of the Group; hence, the requiremeant to
repart oh Clause 3(xwi) {d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company
has neither incurred cash losses in the current year nor in preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
regquirernant to report on Clause 3fxviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company,

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 24 {a) to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledae of the Board of Directors and
maragement plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nathing has come to our attention, which causes us to helieve that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this iz not an assurance as o the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall dus.
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{(xx} According to the information and explanatians given to us, there is no liability for the company
under provisions of section 135 of the companies Act, relating to carporate social respansibility.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3{xx) of the order are not applicable to the company.

Place: Mumbai
Date : 08072025

For JMMK & Co.

{Earliar known as JMK & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 120459
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ANNEXURE ‘B’
To the Independent Auditor's report on the Financial Statements of lcodex Publishing Solutions

Limited {formerly known as Icodex Publishing Solutlens Private Limited) for the year ended 317
March, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Cantrols with reference to the aforesaid financial statement
under Clauss (1) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(Referred to in clause {g) of paragraph 2 under repeort on other legal and regulatory requirements
section of our report of even date)

Cpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, inall material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system
with reference to financial statement and such internal financial contrals with reference to financial
staterment were operaiing effectively as at 312t March, 2025 based on the internal control with reference
to financial statement criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Intemal Financial Contrals Over Financial
Reporting issued by ICA.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal contral with reference to financial statement criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls with reference to financial statement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india [ICAIN. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were aparating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and emars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility

Chir responsibility s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controla with reference
to financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statement {the 'Guidance Note?
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and hoth issued by the [CAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote
raquire that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate intemal financial cantrols with reference to financial statement was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the adegquacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference financial statement and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial staterment included abtaining an understanding
of internal financial contrals with reference to financial statement, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal conirol
based an the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dug to fraud or
BIrot, B
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Yye believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
staterment.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statement is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for exdernal purpeses in accordance with generally ascepted accounting principles.
A company's intemnal financial control with reference to financial statement includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide reasqnable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pemmit preparation of financial statermnents in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of
the Company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
an the financial statements.

Inharant Limitations of Internal Financlal Gontrols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alza, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement to future periods are subject to the
risk that the intermal financial control with reference to financial statement may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditiong, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or proceduras may
deteriorate.

For JMIMK & Co.

{Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

[CAl Firm Registration Mo. 120458
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Partner b\
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ICODEX FUBLISHING 5OLUTIONS LIMITED
[Fortnarly known s kodoex Publichieg Solutions Prhvarte Lim|tef)
M : LT 2P N2 0 BP LG Taar D
Balance Sheat as at 31st March, 2025

UDIMN: 25151 ZHBNL 1L A

Derle. OB-O7F-2025
Flars: Puna

r. WRIDTw v Aok Rugner
Chiof Finenclal G |per

e

M. lehinl Telhar
Company Secretery
M, Ko, ACS R206D

[Aumount In Lakhg]
An at Al oot
Particule
L NotaNE: M.03I826 2103 2024
Ay EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Sharehelders’ Fumda
fa) Share Copital 3 1,224,10 00
b} Rewsrues and Suphs 4 aE1,65 BE2 33
Mon-currant Liabilitles
i8)  Defermed e LiehBtes: [ned) R 2543 -
{b)  Lorg Tamm Proskinng B 201 15483
Curreni Liab|kiles
{80 Ehort Term Bormwings T 256,00 A7 B
iby Trade PEyablea L}
{lp ~otal outaiarding diea af Mem atderpices =and amall emerprzes and 1.9 1.0
(1] Toted aLratenmrg duss of ereditedd ather thah Moo eolerpses and smal| emerprises oM 2543
fc]  Cther Comrent Liabftea 8 .61 5025
iy Short Tarm Provialone 10 116,88 255
FFe 1,830
B} ASEETS
Hon Currenl Ageds
{Ry  Property. Fent and Equipment ard Intangtle Asaeds "
(it Targike: Assal BBl AE A3
{iil Lnngible Asspis 41,58 1650
(i3} Imtangible Asmabx Linder Drvelpmen HES.48 337.58
b Deferred Tax Aaseks (et 12 . 173
{o]  Lurg Temm Loarms 2nd Advancas 13 - 12453
Curranl Aezss
gy Trade Racelvabiss 14 284,10 137,23
by Cash end Cagh Equivedseis. 15 3e3.17 MET1
fc] Ehort Term Loank and Arvanors 6 2.0 TTES
(d} Cther Corent Sanedn i 154,14 2231
2 ATA.NT 1, GE 06
‘Jurmmery af Sigrificat Ascuuing Poices 1=2
The accomparying noles am zn inkegral pRt nf e Inancis| sRtemeares 2w d3
B por par Alachcd oot of cuen dete
For JWNK & Co, For end an Behalf of Board of dractors of
(Earfcr kriran a5 JMK & oy IC0DEN PUBLISH NG SOLUTIONS UMITED
Charesd scooan@nis
ICAI Firm Reqistraian Ma, 12045907
’ Llﬁ' ¥vie=—
4 %L‘V‘-——QI\[, g
]
Jilnndre Doshd Mr, Famalakhannsan oy indra) Mr. Chatan Sonl
Partnor DAN: 1420 DW= Tad4 27
Membamhip Ho : 134274 Manmging Dircciog Whaoda-tima Diregr




CIN : UF2200PN201BPLC1T6E7D

ICCDEX PUBUISHING SOLUTIONS LMITED
(Famerdy known as leodex Publishing Selutlons Privata Limlted)

Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year andad 345t March, 2025

lAmount in Lakhs}

A5 per our attached report of even date

ICAl Firm Raglatration Mo, 1204590

Jitendra Doshi

PartHar

Mambarship o ; 151274
UDIN: 25151 274BMIILO4204

Mr. Kamalakicanman Govindrej
DiN: E144284
Managing Dirsctar

e

—

Date; OB-O7-2025
Flace: Pune

Mr. Vaibhav Ashol Rupner
Chiaf Financlal Dfficer

et

; Yaar Ended Year Ended
Particul
s et 31.09.2025 21.03.2024
FRevenus
{8} Revenue from Qperalions 16 2,187.74 1,040 ,07
(b} Gther Income 1% 2014 5909
Total Revanue 2,207,580 1,089,16
Expahsas
(&) Employees Benefil Expenges 20 596,30 530.53
(D) Finarnce Costs 21 2247 4.00
i) Depraciation and AmoHisation Expehses 11 &0,21 4225
{d} Othear Exparnses 22 248,35 96.40
Total Expenges 92612 67318
Prafit befora excapliional and axtra ardinary ibem 1. 28175 42598
Excaptianal iwms - -
Proft before tax 128175 42588
Tax Expensa;
[a) Currant Tax 237.74 734.55
() MAT Credit Enlillsment/Utlised 12424 {B6.51)
(] Deferred Tax 23.71 (704
[d) Excass pravisions of aadisr yaers .44 {28938
Total Tax Expenses 3RE_13 {28.35)
Frofit for the yaar Ba662 466,53
Earnings par ghara [of Re.10/-each): 23
[a) Basglc T.a2 379
i) Dilluted Ta2 37a
Surnmary of Sgnificant Accounting Policles 12
The accomparying notes are an integral part of the Anancial statements Jto 3

For JMMK & Co. For and on Behelf of Board of Directors of
{Earller known 2z JMK & Co.) ICOREX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Chertered Accountants

Mr, Chetan Soni
DAN: T34127

Whola-time Dirchor

D™

. Mahinl Talher
Company Secratary
M. Mo, ACS 62080




ICOREX PUBLIGHING BOLUTIONS LIMITED
[Farmerly khown ax Icodex Poblishing Solutions Private Limiled)
GIM : UT2300PH2048FLC TEETe
Cah Flow Statoment For tho yegr wnded 315t March, 2025

- For the year ehded | For the ywar snded
Particulars March 31, 2025 March , 2024
A Cash Flows from Oparating Activities
Frafil befora trmes 1,201, 7h 425 56
Adjustments for:
Oeprenation end amoerllsalion sxpense 5521 42 25
Intereat Pexd 1085 3.05
Interesk on Fed Deposils [aLE T (el
Oparating prafit befors working capltal changas 1,338.70 453,58
Chanpes In Warking Capital :
[Increaae)Decreesa m Trade receivables {956.77) Ad .04
{Inereasc) in Other Cument Asseis 113.86] [202)
{Dacreass] In Trada Payablas LR (78.15)
Inorease in Glher Curmnt Liabllilles F1.86 11.e7
Inerease i lorg bemp proytslong w7 “5.65
Increase In shart tarm provslons 4,28 3.81
Net Changes In Working Gapisl 820 141 t5 71
Net Cash flow generated from the operalions 20981 44837
et tax pald (neth 1274.51) t57.45)]
Hat Cash Nlew from mpermiling activifes %11 F3.92
BE. Caah Flow from Im/eating Acllvitian
Purchasetale of Poperty, Plant awd Equipment ama Intargisla Asseis [JIL-LN P {205 D)
Decraase in ahort lemm (odane & sdyvancas 14.38 57 .58
{Increasa)'Decreazs in long mrm keans & advances 124.52 {36 .84
Irlaraet on Flved Depoalta 18 47 aaT
Het Cesh wead In Invaeting acihitles {921.85}) {33€ 0%}
C, Cach Flaw frarm Financing Acthvities
Procead From Issue of sharas 1E0LEH] -
Proseeds{Repayrmentz) of Short Temis Borowings 21088 BE.2d
Irlerest Paid (16,80} 1306
Net Cash flow from financing activities i 20 B3.1%
Hat increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents { A+B+C) [T 148.DE
Caah and Ceeh Equivelants at tha beginning of the yaar E-Hey | 15T.85
Cash and Cash Equivalants at the end of tha year ELER L 305.71

[Summary of Slgnifleant Ascaunting Pollsles
Mates 1o [he Finandal Statemarnta

il. Componaents of Cath ahd Bank Balanesi aktha and of e yaar:

1-2
Ao Al

i. The Cash Flow Skalement has Iwen praparsd yrelar tho ndimct metnsd as sal ad in Accountry Slandard 3 on Casa Flow Statemaent
|es spacfied under section 132 of tha Gom panias Acs, 20713 read with rle ¥ of the Sompanies [feoounss} Rules, 2014 (as amended),

An AE 3]st Maych, A At 3lat Mareh,

Fartculas 2025 2024
Aalance with Bank 1659 4,73
Zaeh on Hard 044 0892
Fhaad Depoalt 8 len merkad to Jwardraft mit eacrtioned By I[CIGI Bank for Ra. Ra. 465

_akhs, The applicabla finanzg ohame is Repo Pale + Spread 3.00%. 34700 300.00
[Total Cash and Cash squbralents as par Balanca Sheed J83AT 0571
ii. Fugurae fier tha prawicua periad kave been ragrouped | rearranged wherevar found necessany.

45 PER DUR ATTACHED REFORT OF EVER DMTE

Far JHMMK & Ca Fer and on Behalf of Beerd of Direckars of

1Earllar known a= JNK & S ICOQEX PUELISHING SEH UT|ONS LIMITED

Chartered Accauntants

Fimt Rapgistraton ha, 120458407

'
liitendra Doshl = Mr. Kamalakiannan Gevindra Mr. Chetan Sonl
Fartner DH: B144209 OIN: 734127
Fh‘lamharahlp Moz 1512r4 ol WWhale-Hme Director
LIDIM; 25181 27 4R L L l‘
_-"//
'k

Date: g8-07-2025 Mr. Yaibhav Aahol Rupmar Ma. Mohinl Talhar
Plase! Fure higl Finahcla] OMeer Coampany Secratary

M, Mo ACS 62080




KODEX PUHLISHING SCLUTICHS LIMITED
[Formerly known ag Icodex Publizhing Schbons Private Limited)
EZIN @ UrXMFN2018FLCATRETE
HNebas forming parl of the Financial Stalements for tha year ended 315t March, 2025

COMPANY INFORMATION

lcodex Fublishing Solutiana Limited (formarly known B8 lcodex Publishing Soluliome Privete Limitzdy i & publls mited
cempaty damiciled and incompersled in Indie under the pravigiong of the Companies Act, 2013 on May 26, X118 The
coempa~y apecializes in providing IT and M-enabded servicea, parlcukardy through 2 propristary platform that streemiinas
proceszes for stakehnlders Im the pubdshing Industry, including auihors, publishars, and pear raviewers. In addition o
ofiering Saas (Saftware az a Service], the company foruses on 1w developmant of AHsased IT tools. Indially, the company
catered 1o Intemalional clients, Ul it naow has a domest custemar base as well. The registerad offica te loceied at 102, Firet
Fleor, Suman Business Park, kalyanl Magar, Yiman Megar, Pune - 411014, Meherashtma.

SIGHIACANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The financizl statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Genersly Accepted Accountng Pollcles {GAAP) under the
historlcal sost convention or the accrual basls. In cormpllance with all materlal aspacts of accounting standards (AS) motiNad
under seclion 133 of tne Act, read with Rule T of the Companias (Accounisy Rules, 2014 [as amendad). Accounting paliclas
Rawe bean consistertly spphied ascapt wivae 8 mawly issued actounting sandard is intiely adoplad or 8 ravision to Bn
meisting accounlicg etandard requires a cheamge in the scpounting policy hithero in ues,

All assetls and liabilies have bean classified oo cu'rant of Norecurrant & per the Company's normal speraling awla and
othar chlsda el oul in the Scheduls Il to e Companies Act, 2013, Eesed an the nature of businees of provizion af
mervices and their reellzation In caeh and cesh equivalents, the Company hae sscertsined its operating cycle B8 buelve
manihs far the purposa of cument and ran current classfication of assets and lisbdities.

Uss of aetimates

The prepareion of finerdia| etelaments raquirea the managamsant of the Comoany o meke eallmates end assumpions thet
affect the raported balancee of sezele and Fabditiee and dieclcewres relating ko the cantingent [abilitiee aa at the data of the
financial statements and reported amounts of Income and expense during the year. Examples of such esllimates Include
prowvisians Tor dousliul recsivables, provislon for income taxes, the useful llves of depredable Property, Plant and Equipment
and pravislon for Imgairment. Fulurs results coald differ dee 10 changas n these sstimates and the difference bebween he
actual result and tha aslimatas are recagnized in the pariad in which ha results are known 7 matanalise.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Propery, Plant & Equipman end intergible sseats ere statad el cosl kess socumuleted depracietion/emarisatian and nat of
impeirment. Cost of an fiem of property, plert and equipmeant comprises its purchese price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase tewes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any direcly atirlbutable costs of bringing the tem lo
I working condltion for its Intended use and astmated cost of dismanting and removing the tem and rastorfg e sile an
which |t i located, Subsequent axpandiura ralating to propary, Manl and coulpment i capltalizad only whan it is probable
that future aconanic bonefits assoclated with these will flow o the company and the cost of the llem can ba measurad
rallably, The cost of property, plant and equipment not available for Use as al wach reporing date is disclosed undar capital
wark in progress. Depreciable amount fo- sssets i the cast of an esset, kess its estimated residual value. Depreciat™an an
Fropery, Flemt & Eqguipmeant (including aeeeta teken on lseas), clher then frashald land, ie charged based on e alreight
line methad on tha eetimeied wesiul §fe as preacrbed in Schedule || ta the Companiae Act, 2013 except in reepect af the
certsin calegerles of aszels, where the e of the asacts has been assessed based on Indemal techmical esilmate,
conslidedng the nature of the assot and cstimated usage of e asset, the operating conoitinng of the asast, pags history of
replacamsnt, antlelpated Wehnclogical chares,




d

Intangtble assets

Intargitls Arsets ane slated ot acquisition cosl, net of accumulated amortisation and secumulatsd impeiment Iossee, i any.
Zains ar loases arsing fram the retirerment or disposal of an inlangible aseat are delermined as the differanca pabwasn the
nat digpoasl progeads and the cerrying &@mount of the sesst and recognisad ea Mopmea or expense In the Statarment of Profit
grd Loag

fs of March 31, 2025, the Company has ecognized Caplial Workdn-Progress [CWIFS amodnting to $208.24- Lakhs related
wr ihe dgevelopmenl of vadous digital platforms alned at enhancing research, publizhing, and journal management
processos. The key projects under development are as follows:

EAsEIstani+:

A rasgarch manuscript oplimzeilion platfarm designed b suppord esearchers, wnivarsities, emd research inslibllions.
Efeeistentt simplifiss lhe manuscrpt preperation process, snebling resaamchers to efficiently prepare their work for
aubmiagzian by offaring rapid processing, compelibility with variows file typee, and & user-and|y anfne aditor,

Aricle Review Platfarm:

A advancesd ediling and procfing platform that radefines the adoral procass, The patform Integrates saamlessty with
uhdetylng XML and HTML, providing authors, editors, and proof collalors with comprahenslve editing tools, nbult spell
chckars, sitelicn managarmant, and robust collaboration lealutes.

Flexy Papa:

A candrallzad pagination platfiom that streamlines te pablishing process by comverting XML filea Inte fully peainated aricks
using & fast emd melieble HTML peginalion ergira. FlexyPaga supporis yersatile lavout conigumbons, nalive LaTaX mguation
hamdling, and generates both HTML and PDF aulputs, ensuring 8 smeath trepa tion from content creation to publication,

JELD:

A Joumal spectication management systermn designed to empower publishers and scholar socletes, JSLD offers a
randralizad reposiiory for managing joumal spacilicalions, from lille informalion e conlent layoul, workfow manzgemant,
and print and dellvery progessea, |t pravides robust metsdata valldation, powerful enaltics, and publisher-coninalled
aulomation to annance aficiency and accurEcy it [oumal managarment,

Theze projects are curandly in develogpmant and are expaded 10 contribute significantyr o the Company's digital oFarings
upan completon.

Depracialion | Amorlisation

Praperty, Flant and Equipment (PPE):

In respect of Property, Plant, and Equipmant {other Man frechold [and and capital work=In-progress; acguired during e
yeer, depreclationfarnoritsation Iz cherged on 8 etalght-lne beels, Cepraclatlon |8 celcusted o writa off the cost of the
assels aver thair raspactive usefd lves, 85 prescribed under the melevant slendards.

A sorap value of 5% of the orginal coet has been considered for all depreclable aszers, except freehold land and caplhtal
work-In-progress. The company reviews the estfmated wseful [ves, resldual values, and depreciation methods aanually to
ansure they remein approprata.

Tupe of Asssis Parlad
Fumiture and Fixtures 1 Yeara
Dfflce equinment o Yoars
Compaters A Yeam
Intangible AssBts:

Intanglble assets are Identfiable nonr-maonetany a9sets withaut physical aubstenca. The compeny's intangible asseta conaiat
ol HTHML OP5S includes verslon.b o 540, These assets are Inlally receanized at cost and subsequenty measured at coat
Iegs aceurnulabed amorization and impairment kesea,

HTKL OPS: The ussful Iifa of HTML OPS |5 estimated to be 10 vears. Amotizalen |5 calcubated on a sralghting basks ower
the egtimAted uzefu| Efa of e aaset.

Softwara: Third party bought oul softwars are amonllzed over a period of 0 years. A residual value of 5% of the orginal cost
has bean cansidered fr these assets. Amarization |5 calouated on & stralghiHing hask over the sesel's uasful lifi,
mesounting far the estimated residual valus,

The eampany reviews Ihe estimated veeful lives end emortization metheds annualy 1o ensure thay emaln appoprliate.




Il Capital Werk in Progress (CWIP):

i AP (Innovative Comprehensbve Aubomabe=d Publishing Platfarmi:
An irehouse developed doua-based putlishing workfiow solution which strepmilines (he publishing prosess through tra

Workflow and Gommunizalion Manegemert, Data Trans%er, Data Storage In a singla window with ready-to-use production
engines that eliminale all tha challenges In Copyediting, Pagination and eBook conversion within a technologydriven
anvironrrent with 8 eloud aajulion that saves fime a2nd money, ICAPF ntegrtes autcmated production systems to
atreemling the entlre publishing process. |t affers a single, oahegive Matforrn for publishera and societisa to managa gvery
atpae of thalr wark, from manuzcrpt submiszlon thrcagh edilovial and peer revies, to inel prodyction, all under ana rags,

2 PaperPerfect:
Softwars dasignad o support resesnchers, univarsities, and research inethutions, b 1 & manuscript s system Hat
rabuet Icals and feaiu-gs to help authore craate walletuctured and high=guslily manuzodpis.

3 afsstank
Thim manuscripl azzeasmart ay=tem iz ailered to meet publisher amd |ourmaldeval requirsments. aAssistant ensunes thal
manuscripts are formatted eccording to apecifls |oumal guidelnes, making he submission process smoother and mone
efficient for researchera and publiahers allke,

a Proof:
An onllme revlaw and aditing platform, the AHltle Review Platform faciitatee assmlese collaboration batween authers apd
aditora. It providea lpale for comprahensiva review end editing of manuscripls and preofs, cnhancing tha quallly ard
accuracy of published work

5 FlenyRape:
FlaxyPags |5 ah advanced HTML-based onkne layoul proceseing ayetam. it efficiently creates print and onlineready POFa,
ahsUring ihat conterit is peasented Ih a profaesianal and acceseibde format for bodh print s~ digitel diztribution.

& KCE [intelllgent Mechanbeal and Technleal Editing Sysktem):
ICE ks aeslgrcd W comvan Word ranuscipts bte structursd XML This Intslligend syslem automeates tha mechanical and
bechnlcal aditing process, ansunng accuracy and consistancy in Lhe finel cutput

7 Hang:
Leweraging Al tachnalogy, iLang ie an advanced [anguege aesasemart and aditing platfprmn, | provider (homuegh [3nguege
editrg aod ggzegsment genvices, enhanging the clarty, coherence, and aversll quallty of manuscripts,

2 |Ref:
IRef k& an automated reference management platform thal verfles, updates, and restruclures references based on the
required shde. i ensures nat all eferences are accurate and progedy lormatied, saving Lime and reduding erars in citation
ETETE TN

9 POH [Product Data Hub];
POH mameges preduct end production soecificetions throughowt the entire Ife eycle of an aricle or book. From [nitkal
cragllon to final distibution, POH ensures hat all specfications arg metioulcusdy iracked and managed,

10 PubRish:
IPub ks 3 cloud-bazed digital Nbrary deskgned for the disserination of publshirg content. I offers 2 robust platform for
sloring, managing, and distrlbutmg digllal content, making ILeas by acoessible 10 readers and messarches,

11 eBaoks;
isBogks epeclelizes In digiiZing boake into popular formets such es Kindle, Mcobl, and iBock applicalions. L snsures that
pooks are accessible across vanows digital platforma, resching e widar sudience.

The estimated time ;0 complete developmenl of el ivese projects are expacted to get daveloped by 315t March 2027,




Direct Costa:

Direct costs include expeneas shat ere diecthy stributeble to the softwere development, sucn as salarfes and wages of the
developmeant ieam, acftware licenses, hardware required for testing and develepment, and thirdparty services uzed In the
devedopment procese.

Indiree] Costs:

Indlrecd cozls ara apportioned lo the project based an their condibulion ta the develspment activity, Theea include
cvarnaads ke admiristrative suppar, infrestructure costs (sarver hosting, powar uaage, ete.), erd shared resaurces wilized
during tha praject,

Quantification Methodology:

Time~basad albocalion: Costs ralated ko pareocnned invalved in the project ere quantified baesd cn twa actusl ime spent on
the projoct, using imesheets and projact racking kols.

Resource uilization: Hardware and edfhware coets ere appodicned bagad on the actual uasage for the poject, with proreted
alipcation where rescurcag are shared aprpss multiple projects,

Creernead allachallen: Indirect coate are allcalen vsing @ pre-oetenmined gverhend rate based on historlcal cost patens and
the kevel of involvernent in the project.

CWIP Quantficatlon:

A% of i reporling date, the Iolal capital wark in progress related e HTML-OPS Yersion 2 indudes the eccumulsted direct
and indiract sosks of developrmeant, which will ba capitelzsd onee the platform is complaled and Iensfarred to indenoibles
aesats for amortizatian,

Projact Continukty:
Mo praject thal was under davelopment hes been suspendad. The company has snsumed canlnuous progress, with no
delays orinterruptiens, in the devslopmenl of the platform.

Leases

wWhars the Comaany i the kesao :

Lease acrangenanls where lhe risks and rewards incicantal ta 1he owmership of assets substantially vesl with the |esser ame
daecifiad 88 operating le=aas, Operating leesa paymends ara racopnized 86 8n aspanse in the Statemant of Profit end Laes
on & stralghi-line basls over the lease term, unless there |z angther systematlc baals which I3 more repregemative of (ke
time paileim ol the leaze.

Impairment

At each batance sheet date, the management reylews the camying amounds of ity aasets irchded in each eaah genersting
unt o dotcrmine whether there is any indication thal those assels were Impalred, 15 amy such Indlcallon exists, ke
tecgverable amount of the ageet ig estimated In order to determine tha aextant of imperment Fecoverable amaunt is tra
nighar of an assat's net selling prics and value In use, In ass23sing value In use, the ectmeted future cash lows expected
fram the continuing use of ike asset and from ils disposal ars discounted o helr prosent value Usitg @ pre=tas discount rale
that refiecty the currenl market aggessmens of tme value ¢ mpney ard the rizks specific 1o the pazet, Reversal of
impainmt boss 15 racagnised as Income In e staterment of proft and loss,

Investmants

Invesimants which ars razdlly reallzable and Intended 1o bo held for not more than a year from the date on which such
investmenls are made, are classifiod 2% cuwrent Investments, Al other nvestments are classiied a8 nan-cument
inveatnanls.

On initiAl recognilicn, all investmants Bre mesesured at cost. The cost comprises purchese price and dirccty attributatse
acqulsition chargas such as brokersga, faee & duties.

Lgng term Invegimenls pregcrbed n the firmncial statermema are cariad at cost and curment irmvastment at loswee af cost and
falr value.

Gurmenl investmenls arg carrled |n the financlal statements al lower of cost and far velue delermined on en ndividual
invastmanl basiks. Long-term investmanis are camed at cost However, provislen far diminution n valwe iz made to
reengnirs & decline cihar lhan tamparary in e vakis of the Invaslments

O digpngal of an investment, the difarence bebwasn carrying amounl and nel dispesal proceeds 15 crangeaicredited to the
statement of profil & loas,




| Employss Esnsilts
(i} Short tarm Employea Banefita
Short-term ermgloyea benefils such es salary, bonua, atc. payabla wihin 12 monthe are accounted an accrual basls,

Drefined contribution plana

Eliglhle employess raceive benafite fram & pravidant fund (EPF) and Employer's State Insurance {E21, which are defned
conlribulion plars, Bot- the amployeses and the Compary maks menthly cortibutions 3z per conditians ard regulalions
pregeribed under EPF & MP Act, 1952 and C31 Act, 1948 respacthety.

Dwfinad bensfits plans

The Company providea for grafuity under the defined benefit retirement plang covering ellgible employens, Tha Gratully
provides a lump-aum payment b veetad employees at eirament, desth, Incapadtatkon or lerminaton of employment, of an
armount besa an he respectva em plovea's salery and the lenure of empfayment with the comparry,

Liabilifiea with repgard to defined benefi plang ere ngtermined by scarial valuation, perfarmed by a0 ndependent actuary,

&t each Balance Sheet date using the projected unlt credil nrethed. Thw Company recognized Lhe nel obligetion of the
grat.y plan and leave encaskment benefits In the Balance Shest as an assel of Bability, respaclively in sccordance with
Accqunting Standand (A% 15, Tmployee Bencfits™. Actuarial gains and kbsses ansing frwm exparsnce adjustments ard
charngcs In actuarlal assumption ars recagnlzad In tas Statament of Proft and Loss in lhe period in which they eriea.

{ii} Other employes borafibs
“he undlacounted amaunt ef shorkerm employea henefits expacted to be pale In exchange for the services nenderad by
amplaysss -8 mcognised durdrg the parked when the employes randera the sarioe, Theas bersdits [neude compensated
absences such 8= peid annual lkeave, oversess social security contribulions and parformance incentves,

Compensaled absonces which are nol sxpacled Lo occle within twelva months efter the snd of the parad in which tre
empdoyee renders the relaled senvices ae recognsed 39 an actuarally determined llakdity al the present value of the
defimed banefit cbligelicn at the balepse ahest date.

j Revenue recognition
Revenua fivm IT and [T-enebled servicas: Revenus is recognizsd when gervices arg rendered In aocoopdance with he

cunlracl ietms, and |t is probable that economic benslits associated with the transaction will Now to the compary.,
Bubscripon Services: For sarvices rendsred oh a3 subscripllon basls, rwwnuee s recognized svanly over the duration of
tha mubacription. Any portion of the subacription periad that i unexpired As At the repolng dale = camed forvard as
daferrad ravenue.

Unkifed Revenus: Unbllled revenue 13 recognized for services that hane baen rendared but ars yat Io be invaiced. Theas
are racorded as recalvables when there |5 an unconditianal <ight to patment.

Imterest Incomea: Intsreal income iz recognized using the effective Imterest rate method, consldering e cutstanding
priredpal and lhe applicable intersat rate,

Dividend Income: Dividend incomea & esanlzed when the compamy’s Aght 1o recelve paymment & established.

k Borrowing Cost:
Borrawing caets thet are directly stidbuieble to the acquisthan, construction, or preduction of quaiifitng asscts, which take a
substardial period of lime o pregpare for their intenoed use or eela, are capitelized az part of Ihe cost of thoze pazets. AH
ciher barrawing cosla ere recognized es axpanees in bhe period in which they ere incurred,

1 Taxaton
Curtent income tax srxpanse compisea faxss an incoma from cperations in India and in forglgn Jursdiclone, ngome tax

payabie n Indla 13 datermined in actordance with the provisieas of the Income Tax Act, 1281, Tax cxpense relating 1o

foreign aperatiana ig detarmined i accordance with 1ax lawe applicable in coundries where such operations are domiciled.




Minlmum Altameliva Tax {MAT) pald In aceardance with 1he tax laws Inindla, which givas ise to future sconomic banafia In
the form of adjustmert of future Income tax labdlity, |5 cunsidersd as an assst if here i6 convincing svidence that the
Company will pay nomnal income tax aftar e fax holiday poricd. Accondingly, MAT ig recogniged 85 an agset In the halance
sheat whan the ssest can be massurad reliably and it is probable that the future economee benallt assocated with it will
rectfy.

Deierred tax ecpanse or banefit & recognised on liming differences befng dwe difference beiween taxabe Icome and
accounting income thet originate in ane period and is Bkely to verze in one or more swbsequent perleds, Deferred tax
assets and liabiltiss are measured using tha tax ratae and tex lawa Ihat have baen enacted or substanclvely enacted by Ihe
balance sheet dats,

Achsance taxes and provislons Tor sument Income I3xes are presented in the balance sheot attar off-setting advance tex peid
and income tax provision arieing in e same 1ex jurediction for relevant tax pendng unitz and where the Comparty g able 1o
ard intands Io aettle the ae=at and liekility an 8 net baeja.

Related Parly Transaclions: Tha Comparny erters into treneactions with relatad partles on an arm's length besls In
secordance with the Transfer Pricing reguietions prezcrbed under the Income Tax Act, 1961, The twansfer pricng
dacumantalion to aubatentiste the arm's lenglh prcing 2 maintained gs requlred uwer the [aw.

The Compary oifssls defermed tax assels amd da‘amad tax liabililies if it has a kegally enforceable right and thace relats Io
taxes on incoma |svied by the sama goveming iexaton |ews.

Faralgn currency trongactiony

Foraign curfency iransadlions are initiglly recorded in the reporting curmency by applying tha aschanga mita prevelling
batwean the report'ng cumancy and tha foreign cumrency on the date of the trensaction. For ewenue recognilfon purpceeE,
the conwarsjon mie ysed js the rate preacrbed by the Centrel Board of Indirect Taxes. The aoctual exchange mee received is
v3ed when grediing amounts (o bank accounts.

Cormvgraion: Forgign curmancy monelery ilema are retranslated ueing the exchange rate pravelling at ihe reporting date, Mon-
manetary kams, which are massured in ferme of hizlorical oost denaminated inoa foreign cumency, are repoted uzng the
exchange rate At e date of fe transactian, Non-rionetary [terma, whick are measured at fBir valve or ofer simllar valuat on
denominated In & fore'gn currenwy, are ranskated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

Froviglons, Contingent Rabllies and Contingant asssta

A provison is recopnisad when the Company has a presenl abligatian 2 a result of pazl evedt ard it is probatds that an
cutflow of resourcas will be required b seitls the obligation, In eepacd of which reliable =stimate car be made. Frovisions
{excluding retirament bensfits and compensaled absencas) awe nol discounted ‘o ils present valea and are detarmired
btaeed on best actimate raquired to sstte the obligetion at te balence shaeet dete. Thesa sre raviewed sl sach balance
eheet date and adjuated to reflect twe current best estimales. Centingent liabilittes are not recognised In the fmancial
gtalemenis. A confingert 83361 i3 neliher recognbzed nor diaclezed In the financlal slatements,

Incoma Tax Demand:

The saseaamente v Aossaamant Years [AY) 202223 ard H23=24 heve resulted in botel disputed demanda of 2345
lakhs and $18.75 kkhs ~espectively {inclusive of interest), Thess demands primarily arge from the disallowancs of the
deduction clamed under Secllon 80-44C of the Income Tax Ack, 1861, The Company has Med appeals before the Hon'ple
Cowrrmisslorer of Income Tax [Appeals), and boln matiers anre currenthy pending adjudic=ation,

Panalty Procaedings:
In connection with the abova demands, the Ae=zessirg Cfficer hee alao iniliatad penslly proceadings under Section 2708 of
the Income Tax Act, Fowever, Ihess proceedinge heva bean kapt in abevance pending the final autcome of the eppeals.

Bazad on expert lagal acvics, Ihe Company belleves |t has a steong case on merts. Accordingly, no provislon has been
mede in tha financlel statements. The entis demand has beeh appropriately disclozed a2 a cantngonl labiliy In sccordance
with the epplicable sccounting siandarda.




o Gash end caah equlvalents
Tha Company conslders all highly liquid finendial metrumanls, which are readity convertibbe iinta krown ameunt of cash that
are subkiect to an Inskgnifcant dsk of changs In valus and having originel meturiies of twee monthe or Issa fram tha date of
purchaae, to be cash equivalents.

p Earnings Per Share (EF3):
Basic earnings per ghere are calculaled by dividing the net prodfit attributable to equily sharetvlders by Lhe weighled average
number of aquity ahares ayfetanding during the reporting pefod. Dluted EPS is computed by adjusting the samings and the
number of aharas for tre effects of al diluthe potental equity sharoes, I any.

g CumentMon Cumrent Claaslfcatlons
The Scheduls |1l to the Acl reqguites assats and liabililies to be classified as sither Cument or Non-cument. An secal is
glazsified as curvenl when i sallsfiss any oF (e follcwing crilenia;
a)Eis expected to ba realized in, of is iendad fiw s3i8 of consumption in, the ertily'a nomel apereling cycla;
blitla hald pdmadly for tha purpose af bedng treded,;
clillie axpectad to be raslized wilhin twahse monthe after the brlance sheel date; ar
dy ite cash or a cash equivalent unkess i 13 restricted from belng exchanged or used 1o sefle 2 [kability for at least taehe
merths after the balance sheet date,

Cumeil aszets [Medutde U currant portion of Ron=curtant financial essets. All other aseats am classified 85 nron-cumanl

A lihil ity i classifisd as cument when it Salisiies any of the following crileria:

gyt is expected to be satidad in, Ihe anlity's normal operating oyole;

bilt iz held primanily far tne purpose of being reded;

clitie due o be seitled within twebve months after the balance sheet date; o

dy Tha Company goes nofb havs an uncondifional dght to defer setilement of the liabilty for at least twelve months after the
balance shest date.

Curmanit llablites Include cumatit padion of nen=currant financlal lablltles. AN other liabiitles ara clazsiled as non-currsat,

r Sapment Raporting
(I} Buslness Seqrment
The accounting pollcles adapted for sagmant raporting are inlina with Ihe accounling policies of thelr Company, Revenues,
pxpanses, Bssats and liskililies heve bean idaniified inte segments on the basis of their elatlonship to opemting actwities of
segmants [teking into account the neture of productks and eervices and the nsk and rewards essocisted with them) and
Internal management Infermetien systems and the game |8 reviewad frgm (ime {0 Hme ke realign the same (o conform o the
businesz unlts of the Company. Revenues, expenses, assets, and llablliles, which are common to the enterprise as a whole
and are nod Sllocable to the segments on 2 reasonable  basls, have beon Teatsd 2z "Comnon
Revenues/Expenzasihszets/l abiltias”, as the case nay b,

(i) Geapraphical Segmeanl
The Company activities f aparsllene ara confined Lo expart and In India e such, thete |z onky bwe geographical segrvents,

s CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Cagh flows are reported wsing the Indirect mathod, whereby profit before tax |5 adjusted for Ihe effects of lransacdons of non-
cash nalusa, any doferals or accruals of paslor fuhora oparating Gash receips of payments and dam of income or expenses
assockated wWith Investing or firancng cash flowe. Cash fows from aparating, vasting and financing actvities of the
Company ara sagragated, azcordingly.




ICODEX PUBLISHING 2OLUTIONE LIMITED
[Fowriarhy kndnan 2% kodex Publishing Solutfons Private Limliad)
CH : LIT2800P NS BPLC TERTD
Hotes forming parl of te financial BlEemenis for the year anded 31 st Marsh, 2025
fAumount In Lakdwel|
[Hoba 3 = Share Capital
BB 6l 31,03.2025 Ay gt 31.03-0074
Farticulara Amaunt Burimlink
Ko, of Ehamn {ifl Lakis) Ho. of Bheres {in Lekhs}
fia} Adherised
1, B0,00,000 {P_ 10,000) Equlty ehanes of Fe 10 asch 1,80, 00,000 1,800.00 10,000 1.00
(Refar note 1 balow)
Total| 1, B0, 00, T 10,000 1.00
Iiby leaund, Subaerbad snd Fully Pald Up
1,241,020 (P, 1,000) Equity ehares of Fie16 each, [y pald up 122,41, 20 122410 1,000 D40
Total 1,22 .41 Ghd 122410 o1 (Ml 010
() Reconciliadion af the ghares sutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporiing year
Ag Al F1.04,2026 Fux gt 31,03.2024
Farticiiare Amount Amourd
Mo ef Sharss | anbakhey | NO- P3N0 o) apma)
Equity Shares of B, 10 each with wating rights
AL e pegkidiy of the wear 1, Ok I [ H] 1,000 040
Add; Righl issue during 1he year [Fefer nota 2 below] ) 0.5y
Add:Benue [equs of aherea Intha ramto of 1212000 dulng the yess 1,23 1] D05 1,224,050 = =
{Refer nate 3 balow)
Qutstanding at the and of 1he vaar 1,22.41 (bt 1,224,160 1 [ 010
|dy Deinils of $hares hold by «uch sharhelder helding mers than 9% shares:
A6 ol 3103, 2025 Ag al 31.02.2024
Nama of Shareholders
Ho. of Bhamsa | % of Shares | Mo, of Shares| % of Shares
Equity Shares of R3.10 eadh with wating fghts
Mr. Kemalakkannan Govlndaaj B3 64,497 3. Bre 00 A0,00%
Mr. Chelen Sonl 53,804,447 432 % EL) B0LO0%
Total Equity Shares 10728354 B7.05% 1 1ol 100007
] Eherag held by Framoters
Neame af Fromaker As at 31032025
HNonof Bhares | % of Bharex | % changey
Mr. Kamakkkannan Govindaral 53,64 447 43.82% =5, 18%
Mr, Chetan Soni &364, 437 43.82% -£.18%
Mr. Kale Chatan Sonl 12,001 0.10% 0,10%
Mr.Premkumar Sank 12,06 o10% 0.10%
Mir. Arfli Chetan Sanl 12,0 0.10% 0.10%
Mrs.Indira Govind 12,01 010% 0.10%
Mrs_Kalavan| Majumdar 12, HH (n10% 0.10%
Mrs.Kanimozi 12,001 0.10% 010%
Total 1 8, 00, S0 BB.25% -11.76%
Name af Promoter A at 31032024
No.of Shares | % of Shares | % changes |
M. Kamatakkannan Sovindaraj 504 S L00%,
Mr. Chetan Sonl I S0 0D0%: 0.00%
Tatal 1.008 10.00% 0.00%




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
[Formery known as kodex Publlshing Soluliens Private Limited)
G : UT2600PN201BPLCI1TEETE
Hotes farming parl of The finencial statements for tha year ended 31 sk March, 2026
{Armount In Lakdes)

|

Hatas

1 [FRng e vear pursuent io approval given by sharebokdar in the Extreordmary Senaral Megteg hold on 13h June 2024, fwe company has)
increased authorizad aheme caplal fram 1,000 fully pald up equity sharms of T10 cach to 1,00,00,000 fully pasd up equiny ehares of 10
each, Furfier, DuAng the yasr ended March 2025 pursuant bo spproval given by sharahoddar 0 the Extracrdinary Geneml Mecling held o
30th Ociober 2024, the company hes incraesed authariz=d share capdal fom 1,00,00,000 fully peid up equity sheree of #10 each 1o
1,83,00,000 Tully pald up equity sharescef I0 cach,

2 T Brorzad of Direslors of the company, at ite masting hedd on 26tk Septarnte- 2084, ke considerad and apgrowsd, the Esdanoe and
alciment of 20 equity eharee of the company hadng face wdye of B30 each at pice of Rs.750,000 par equity ahare fircluding |
premiurn of R4, 743,450 pet equity ahera) on right baale esmaurting Re.150.00 Bkhe. | he sbove propoesl had baen approved by e of
Bosrd of Dd-actara of tha Company Bt the Boatd Maating hejd on 28th September 2084,

1 Dwring tha year kMarch 2025, puresant ko approval ghien by sharmholders n e Extaordinary Gearal Mesting held en 30th Ociober 2024,
the company haa |zsued 1,.22.40,000 kuily peld up bopus equity sheres of B0 each in the retie 12,000 equity share of Re.19 sach for
evary 1 axdeting aquiy ghore of Rs.10 eagh,

Rights, preferance and rastrielion o equity shares =

The Company hag chly ane class of issUed equity shares having a par value of Ra.10 par share. Esch ahareholder |z ellglble for ene vata]
per sham hekd,

In the evant of liquidstion of she Compeny, the holdare of aquity sharas will be enliled La receive askele of Ibe Comgany remaining
diatribution af all prefarential amours. The d&litulion w8 be in properion o the numesr  of fully peld up equity sharee hald by
sharehoider,




ICCDEX FUBLIZHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
[Famnedy Kiowi 3 foodor Publiching Solutions Private Limited)
G : UT2aFH2018F LG TE8T0

Hotes lommimyg parl of tha Mnancial statsments for 1ha year anded S1ak Mareh, 2035
lAmeimt In | akhs)

Nole 4: Reserve and Surplus

A al Asal

Particulara 31032025 3103 Mad

44 Sacurdss Pramdum

Bulnz ug per lhe kst ingncial stalemens = x

Add ; Addition during tha wear fon account of Rigrie [Beusa) 150 -
Legs: kasua of bonUe Shares [154] %
B & the and of the visr - -
48 Aurplus In Statermant of Profit and Laes
Balanca as per tha Bel Fmancial slatemants 62,52 4.3
Add: Profit for the year 8& per Annecad Statervent of Prof and Loas i ] 455,33
Loax! Bonus Sharos |ssued {10740 -
Less: Ead ar year ad|uetmert 3.5 -
BE0.58 6232
Total 880,55 BEZ3Z

|Ncta 5: Daferrad Tax Liablltles {natl

Aa al As
s Moz | 3non2mes
Dafentpd Tao Linkality
Rifferanrs bebasaen writlen down value of Propary, Plan and Equipmant as per books of
aeeeuntz and for Taw <086 -
Prowlelan for Gratulty and Leewve Enceshmant (.27 -
Daterrad Tacx Litabllby (nat) 2543 -

Mote B Lang Term Proviaion

Particulary Ax Ax al
31.05. 2023 3,03.2024
Emphryas Bonafit*
Prendsicn far emphyes Benefits Gralvity 2188 12.28
Pronelon for empleyee tenefts Leawe Encashmenl 415 3.54
26801 1583
"Nate: Refer mabe 31
|Wota 7: Shert Tarm Barrewinas
Ax Ax at

Particulars 31.03.2028 31.05.2024

Secured Fram Bank

Warking Cap/isl Lean

{ash Cradk Feciites {Hefar Mota 7.1 256 Bl BT B2
Unsecured

Intarast Froe

Laen From Directar {Ralatad Paries) - L]

206,50 279

74

[rotalln of Secaritan and Rate of Interest:
The working Capital Luan facility 15 sacured agalngl a Curmgnl assols abd Fhed Cepostts of the Cemnparny and Parsonal Gueranty of Fourdar

Dilrectars. The
aemecthanied limit la 435 lakba. The rata of interest for the Werking Cepilel Facllily bommowing 15 L dirm of the pravaling Repo Rala and B
specified spread ax agresd wilh [CICE Bark, Az of tha
reporling date:

Repa Rate: G.5%

Spwaad: 3.00%

Effarhva Intareat Reta: 5.50% per annum
Addifonaly. & processng Tee (PF) ol 0.26% i applicable on the lan amaunt, along wth ery athar stetitory laeies, incleding inkrmst b, as
madatad by regpalalony sutharilas




ICODEX PUBLISHING ECLUTIONS LIMITED

[Formary known ag kasdaxw Publiching Sohrtions Private Limied)
CIN - UT2900PN2019P LG FERTE
Nokes Turming perl of the financial statermemts for he year endad 315t Mareh, 2085

{Amuout In Lalmah
Male 8: Trads Fayahlas
. s wt As at
Partioulars 3100 W25 51,00 2024
Tatal oubsdaming dusy of Wor ererises and small eriarpiesa (Rafer Wots:28) 141 160
Tolal autstarding duss of creditas othar Ean Micro arierpizes and srall &riegises Ml 25.43
2246 2703
Trade Payshle Agsing Schadula
As at 31st March,2025
e ks
Partioular Outstanding for following peariods from due ':F paymm;
Less than 1 Year 1-k Yenre 21 Yearm orejthan Talal
Yaara
(1] BASME 137 - - - 1.9
[CARes .04 = - - 2.3
[Ihsautad dued-M3hE = = - - =
(hiDharubed dues - Others - - Z a 2
Total Frio . - - 2 Bh
As at 31st March,2024
Particular Qutstanding for followino oeriods from dus date of payment
LeeR 1han 1 Year 1.2 Yiuw's 2=3 Yuars Mty S 3 Tedal
Yaws
[i] BASME 1.6 - - . 1.60
[NChe= 543 - . . =43
(MNDigaulad duestMSME - - - - =
(riDIsoubed duss - Dtherm - - - - =
Tatal 2703 - - - 703
Nole & Ciher Gurrem Lisbllides
Ao Bt A &F
artieulars M09.0095 | 31a3.2024
Inlerest pecrued ano due on bank bommwing 245 oG54
Samlutary Duse Peyable g0z 10,97
Due to Ernplioyeet and Olnstors 4278 91.34
Mher payables o3 A0
H1.81 ED, 26
Hcite 10; Short Term Frovislone
Farbculars AR EL ETT]
31.03.3025 21.03.3024
Emplayes Bonofit™
Pravelslon for employes benarit @ratuiy B.10 209
Pravelalon far employee benettt- Leeve Encaghmerit 2.00 172
Froviglen Tar Bt Tax [tet of povemoe By ard TRS reccivakles) 0T 53 Iy T
11842 Z8.51

Hote: Refer note 31




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formeriy known a6 lcodex Publishing Solutione Private Limited)

CIN : UT2900PN201 8PLC1To8 T

Notes ta the Financlal Statemnents for the year ended 31at March, 2025

{Ameount In Lakhs)

Hote 11: Proparty, Plant And Equipment And Inangile Assets

Gross Block (At Cost) Depraciation Nst Black
-1 . Valug at the Addiden | DaducHon| Value at the | Value at the . Adlustmonts | Deduction | Valua at ¢the
Parti
Ne BINERICE beginning a8 at| durdng e | during the | end as at beginning as D"""::, L made during | durlng the | end as at m‘;‘g;‘ :T;;ﬂn::
01.04.2024 year year H.03.2025 | at 01.04,.2024 ye the year year 31.02. 2025
1 |Property, Plant and Equipments

Furritura end Folu re 1.06 - - 1408 {126 {.75 - - 1.M B.05 Q.80
Qifice Equipements 1.78 1544 - 1722 B0 .08 - - 1.88 15,33 Q.88
CarmnpLter 116.93 2181 - 138.74 73,00 30.43 - - 103.52 36,22 43,85
Total (A} 118,78 aT.25% = 187012 T4.15 32.27 - - 106.42 50.60 45,63

1 |Intangible assets
HTML QF3 1038 = = 1038 iz 118 - - 427 B.12 F.27
HTML OPS 3.0 - 40500 - 435,00 - 2475 - - 2475 470.25 -
Soiftwara 1212 - - 1212 2.4 1.04 - - 3.03 B8 B23
Total [B) Z2.50 A595.00 - o17.60 a.0 £6.54 - - 3295 44,58 18.50
‘Tatal {Current Perlad) 14228 53225 - 7452 B8 5921 - = 128,37 51516 62,13
Previnus Year 121.42 2087 - 142.29 37.52 42.25 - 80.16 62.14




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Farmarly known as leodax Publishing Salutione Private Limited)
GiN : UT2500PH201BPLC1 TakT o
Noieg o the Financlal Statements For the year endod 31st March, 2025
{Amount in Lakha}

) Intangible Assets under Development:

As at 31-03- | As at 31-03-
PARTICULARS 2025 2524
Cpening Balance 75D 5250
Aod: Expanditure duning the year 104287 28504
Lass: Captallsed during the ysar =485.00 -
‘Total RAS A6 337.58
(a) Capltal Work in Progress {(Agalng)
F ¥ 2024-25 Amcunt i CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 Wore than 2 Total
-]
Civl yaar 12 years | 2-1ysars =
Proiects m progress 1.042.87 286.08 G250 - 1,380 .46
Projects temporarily suspendead - = = = -
F ¥ 2023-24 Amount I CWIP For a tariod of
CWIP Leaw than 1 12yoars | 2-3iywars More than 3 Tuotal
yaar years
Prolects m prograss 28508 52.50 337 50
Projects lemporarly suspended - - = S z

(b} Capital Work in Prograss, whose compladlen | evardue, the below mentioned details have begn glven:

Ta be completed [n

Cwip
Less than 1 1-2years | 2-3years More than 3
year YBArS

Projects in progress {sppox
addidonal amourt 1o he spont or the = _ . 2
prajact)




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

GIN : UT2300PN20TAPLGT TERTD

{Formerly known as Icodex Publishing Solutions Privata Limided)

Notes forming part of fa financlal atalements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

{Amaunt i Lakhs)

|Note 12: Daefamed Tax Assalz {net)

Particulars Az at At at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Deferred Tax Assets
Difference between written dowan value of Property, Plant and Equipment a3 per books of accounts and for - [3.74)
Tax
Preslslen for Graluity and Leave Encashment - 547
- 173
Note 13: Long Term Leans and Advances
{Unsacured, Congldered Good)
Farticulars Az at Az at

1032025 31.00.2024

Security Dapagita = 0,560
MAT Credit Entittarmant {refar nate 32} - 124,234
- 12493
Note 14: Trade Receivables
{Unsacurad, Consldered Good)
Particulars Aa el As at
31.032025 31.03.2024
Outstandires for perlod lezs han six months fram ke date 1hey became due for paymend 484,10 13733
424.10 13733
Trade Recalvabls Ageing Schedula
As at 31st March, 2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul Total
i Less than & | & montha- | 1-2 Years | 23 Yoars | More than 3
monihe 1 Yearg Yaara
(1) Urdizpuled trade receivables =tonsiderad good 494 90 - - - = 48410
{Il}Undispuled frade recaivables -considersd daoukbtiul
{IHDIzputed trade recalvables- conskderad good = - = d = Z
{Iv}0iaputed tracs receivable -consldarad doubthil = - = 5 = :
Total 494,10 - - - - 454,10
Az ol 318t March, 2024
Outstanding for following periods frotn due dats of payment
RAIEUIRE Less than & | B months- | 12 Years | 2-3 Years | Mote than 3 Total
mormths 1 Years Years
[iy Undigputed rade raceivables -consldered good 137.33 - - - - 137.33
[ijIndispuled trade recalvablas -sunsidersd daubiful
[ifDispuied trade recalvables- corsldersd good & - - B -
[ivdDisputed trade racelvabde -conskiersd doubtiul = - - - <
Total 137.33 - - 137,33




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Fermerly krown as lcodex Pubiishing Solutions Privata Limided)
CIN : UT2300FNZ018PLC1 70810

MNotes forming part of the finanglal stalements for fhe year ended 315t March, 2025

tAmount in Lakhs)

|Note 15: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Amount |A+B}

Perticulamns Az al Ap gt
21.03.2005 31.03.2024
Ealances with Banks:

In Currant Ascaunts 1583 4,79
Cagh on Hamd 0.4a 042
Todal Cash and Caeh Equivalonts [A) 16.17 571
Ciher bank balances
Deposits with original maturlty for more than 12 manths® A47.00 300400
Total Gther bank balances [A) 4700 30000

26317 0571

Spread 2.00%.

*Flzed Deposht ks Ben marked to Overdraft Imit sanclioned by ICIC] Rank for Rg, 495 Lekhs, The applicable finance charge B Repo Rata +

Muba 16! Shorl Tetm Loans and Advances

Parlleulars Ag at Ax at
31.03.2023 31.032024
Geods and Servica Tax Input Cradll Receivable " 52 K7
Securlty Daposits 32,85 24.56
Advance Ageinst Froperty A0 -
G286 T7.22
|Mota 17: Oiher Currant Aszabs
Particulars Az at Az at
3303028 31032024
Accrued Imtelest on Fixed Crapaosit 7.5 1541
Advanc=s to Employees 4.86 £.80
Propald Exponsas 5711 -
Unbdled Revanus 6452 -
12414 27 31




ICODEX PUELISHING SCLUTIONS LIMITED
[Formerhy knewn ps leodex Publishing Scubdons Frivabe Limibed)
EH - yrHPN 1 APLCT 76870
Hotes forming part of finandal stalemants for the year snded 31st March, 2025

(Amount In Lakha)

Note 18 = Revenue from Operations

Partioulars Toor ancied Yoar andar
31.03,2025 31,020,202
Sele of Garvican
Expor 814052 1, 040007
Domestic 127282 -
2.187.74 1.040.07
Hote 19 : Other Invome
Particulara Year snded Year ended
31.03. 2023 31.03. 2024
Interaet on fixed depoaits 8.2y 17,0
Forsign sxchange gain {nat) . 33
Sngdry Blances Witken Back 117 T
Mlzacallansows income 5.00 40,14
20.14 50.00
|Hate 20 : Emplkyee Beneifis Expanass
Partreulars Yaor anded Yaar erded
31052026 31,03, M24
Salanies and wagas Lo employass 5o 20 452 5H
Director'a remuneratian 49.70 28.40
Bonus, Incenlives ele 470 B.OD
Cantibution to providend fund and othars 17.32 13.41
Giratuity and [eane encashment 1440 18,65
Dewalopment Tasm Cosl and Staff welfars cost 0.0 044
698,38 530,68
|Mets 21 @ Financa Cast
Pertlculara Yaur areded Yaar endad
1032425 31,03, 2024
Interest on Barmowing 18.80 05
Dlher bamowing casks
Proceesing Chergae 5AT 0,95
247 4.00
Note 22 = Othar Expensss
Particulars Yaer anded Yaar erded
31092025 310,224
Auait remuraration
Fer audlt 325 240
Tex sudit D.6G 0.50
Aaniningrathe sypenbes 21.83 a.4ar
Tues ard Subcrplion 10.B4 ¥.949
Farelgn exchange Toss (ret) 1218 -
Isurance .36 =
Oiher axpenscs 1056 688
Pener arnd fual - 1.35
Logal and Profassionsl 18.62 747
Rent T3 T 3285
Rapairs and matenans 3.59 .92
Server Hosting Charges g 2 2443
Trawvalling Expenace 48,44 AB5

AT
P
e
]

AT




ICODEX PUBLEBHING SCLUTIONS LIMITED
[Formerty known 88 lcodex Publishing Solutlons Frivate Limited)
G UTRIIP N BPLC 76570
Hotat farming part of financlal staiamants for tha year andad 312t March, Si25

tAmpunt In Lakhzi
Note 23 : Eaming Per Share
Farticulars o3l @ rdod Yoar oo
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
MNet Profit After Teod avallable Tor Equity Sharenolders o562 4G5 33
Waighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 1,22,41,010.14 1,20,01,000,00
‘Welghted sverapge numiner of Equlty Shares for Dljuted EFS 1,22 41 000,14 1,20,04,000.400
Mamihal Valuas of Equily Sharas 10400 10400
Basic Esmings per Ehare raz a7
Gilied Eaminge per Share T3z ard

|Nete: Eamings Fer Share (EPS)

The Eaminge Far Share {EFS) la aaleulated In aceordance with the relevant scoontirg alendarda AS 20. The valghted sverage numbear
iof equity shams hes besn calculaled as follows:

1. Equily Shares Qutstending a5 on st Aprl 2024:1,000 shares

Additional Skares |sssad through Right isuues on 28h September 2024 20 shares

2. Banus 153ue Appaved on 3000 Dgtober 2024;

As par the Exirecrdinary Ganaral Mesting [ECGM) and subsequen board meeling held on 301 Oetober 2024, 2 bonus igsus Was
approved 3t the rate of (120001}, Le. 12,00 equity shares of ¥10)- aach for aach equity ehars of ¥ 1Qv- hald in the Compary. Thie reeulted
in 8 significent mereese in the nurmber of shares, which impects the EPS caleulalion,

3. Wheighted Awarsge Mumber of Equity Shares Cutslending:

Based on the timing ana impsa af Ihe borws Beus and the privale placement, the weighted average number of equity sharea ie computad
at 1.22,41,010.14 (PY 1,20.01 ,000] equity shares.

4. Caked stion ol Esmings Per Shara:

Basic EPS: Nat profit Strbtabls 1o equlty nobdars [ vWekghted everage numbar of equity sharea,

Diluted EPS {if spplicabl=): Adpsiad et prodit £ Adjualed welghled eversge number of equily shares considering pedanilal dilullve shams.
Note 24: Addilional regulatory imformation required by Echedula 11

a. Ratio Analysis

A at As at
Particulars Humerabor D nominabey [— 11025024
(&) Cumrent Retio Casrant Asaata 2.03 285
Currort LiabilRy
) Deb-Equity Rata Titel Debe 08 a.10
Sharsholder's Equity
b} Dabt Service Govwerage Fatit Eaming available for Dbt Senice 4,25 a4
Doabt Sarvice
feh Rabum on Equity Ratio Pt aftar Tas B.73% T1.73%
Avergge Shareheider'a Equity
{2} Invrenibery rnover rafle Tatal Twmovar NA HA
Awerage Inwaniories
{d) Trade reccivables lumener ko Tatal Tumavar 6.3 A.63
Avorage Accoutl Recshsable
{d) Trada payables tarnover mlle Total Purchazes WA L
Avarage Account Payable




[CODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerty known as lcodex Publishing Sclulions Private Limited)
CIN = UTHOHPNIN3PLCT TEETD
Hotas forming pert of financial slatemants for the year apded 315t Morch, 2025
[AmeUnE I Lakhs)

B

o

vii

vl

[#] Met eapial tumcver atic Todal Tumawes 4,08 2,96
Met Wiorking Capltal

Hat Praft
[y Met proft ralo LLER 13.7B%

Todal Tumowe:

[a] Retam an Capltal omployed Eaming before interast and terxes 5817 A8 S5
Capilal Employed

The Coampany da Aot have any Benaml properdy, where eny procesdimg hes been inifisted or panding againet twa Company for
helding any Benaml proparty.

Relatlon with struok off Companics:
The Compeny doee not have ary frangsciong with the Compardes girugk off,

Tha Campeany er vz promaters kas not been ceclered wilful defeulter by ary bank af financal Insifution or oteer [ender,

The Campany Fewve not treded ar [rvasted In Crpte cureney ar Yituel Cumency durdng the Ananclal pedod,

The Company heve nat advanced of oaned or Inwesled fimds o any other persontz) oF entitylles], Including Toreign entites
[Irtermediaresy with Ihe understanding 1hat tee Intemediary shall;

a} dinkcly or indiraciy land or inveest in olher persons or entilies identfied in oy manrer watiesar by or on behal” of the Company
[\Mimate Beneficiarias) or

b} prowide ary guarantes, ascunty of 1ha lika to or on behelf of the Limata Beaneficianas,

The Campeny have nol recaivad any fund from any parsonie} or erlilgies), Including foreban aniities {Funding Pary)h wity 1he
understanding {whelher recorded Inwrilng or othensse) that the Company shall:

[a] diraetly or indirecdly 18nd or invesl in cther parsons or enlilies identified in any manner whatscevar by ar on behelf of Ihe Funding
Party (Ultimeba Jansfclanaz) or

{b] prowide amy quarartas, soecwrity or the like on banalf of the Liimate Bansficianas,

Trhe Cumpany have no swch transaction whicn is not ecormed in the books of accounts that hes been sumanderad or disslcsed as
incoma during tra year In tha tax asseasments wder the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such ae, eearch or aurvey or any other mlevand
privvlElgna of the mpome Tao Act, 1861,

Compllance with regards 10 Ihe number of kayers presoribed under dause (B7) of sdction 2 of the Companias Act 2017 mad wilh
Companiss [Reetrictiorsg on number of Layara) Fules, 2017 e not eppliceble to the Compamy,

Tre provieion ragarding CER expanaaa under Sec 135 of the Companices Act, 2012 are not applicake to company,

Tre Compary does mot hawve any Scheme of Armangements which have been approved by the Competent Auchority In tenms of
seclions 230 1o 237 of the Aot

Oither
The Conpmany has nok antarad into any scheme of arrangernen! wiich has an accounting impact on curranl oF pravious financial yaar.
Thare Is no inceme sUmendenrad of disclosad 8% Income dudhy he curs or previtlus yaar In tha bax sssessments under the Incoma

Tave Act, 1961, that Ras oot baan recordad i the bocks of accourt

Tha Company has not revalued its propery plan! and cquipment or imangible assels or both during cumem peried or previows year

Thara are na charges or salisfaclic which are et 1o ba redlsterad with the Reglatrar of Cormparies beyond the statinory penod.

There ara ne Core Imseetment Companles (G5} in Une group.




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTHGNS LIMITED
{Formarly known a8 lcodax Publishing Solutlona Private Limited)
CIN : UTHO0PN201BPLCITEETO
Neotes farming part of Anancial statamants for the yesr sndad 39zt March, 2025
{Amaount in Lakhe}

Mote 26: Conlingsil Liablinias apd Cammitmeants

Note 26: Ralated party transactions

The Company hee not granled any |xane or edvarces Io Dirsctore', KhiFa and relaled oerles elther saverally of |cdntly with any otrer|
parsone Ehel ara: a) repayabla on demand ar b) without &pecifying any terms or period for reneyment.

lhe Code on Sodse| Secudty, 2020 (Code) releting to amployes bonefts during employment and postemployrnant, resedyved
Presfdenilal agzant b Septembar 2020, The Company will aezezs the impact and t2 evaluallon omes the wiblect ules are nofiad.
The Comgany will give appeopriale impact In i inancial stakerments in the pedod in which, the Code becornes efoctive ard e
related rules to determing the financal impect ere publishea

In tha opinlen of tw manegemant the velus on realizetion of current aeaala, Loara and Adwenca in the cedinany couse of buainess,
will nel ba lase then he valus at which thasa ere skated in the Belance Shast.

a. Contingent Hablities not provided for :

As at As at
Particulars 31.03,2025 31.03.2024

Income tax matters 4223 38.55

Income Tax Damand

The aesssament for Aaseesmant Yaear (AY) 202323 hes poon comploted, resalting in a disputed demardd of T 42,235 Lakhs
{ncluding Interest) dwe to the aizallowence of the deduclion cleimed under Section E0IAC of the Incoma Tax Act by the Company.
The Compamy, being agaricsved by this assessment, has fiked an appeal with the oflce of the Honfle Commiggloner of Income Tax)
{Appealz). The appeal |8 corrently panding sdpudicetlon. Aleo comgeny has elac flled epplicallon u's 154 wharavar |s regquined,

b Commitments:
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capital acsount 1,669,564 .

and not provided for
{il) uncalled liability on shares and olher investmeants partly pald - -

{ill} other comittments & =

Forthe pumpoes of thie finenciel etatameant, parties ate considersd o be relalsd to the company iF the compamy has the ability, directh
ar indireclly, 1o coorrol he: pardy or exerelse signflleant influence gver the party In making inanclal and eperational daclalbre, or vica
varea, or whera the company and the party are subjact bo commen contred o sigrificant influence. Relaiad pary may be an individual
ar gther entities,

A5 pequired under Accounting Standard—16 on Related Party Diecloaurea, isausd by tva Inatiute of Chartersd Accountenda of Irdia,
the disclesars of names of relakad parliss and thair transackons am as andars

A. LUst of Related Partles
[Az [dantifled by the management)

Entities in which Dinectors inberested:
Silvesplne Global Consullants Privete Lirmited
Kemica Minolte Marketing Services India Privabe ©imited
Spark Adizars And Buzinese Solutloms Privats Limitad
Bealsi Conaulling Private Limited
Modwin Gaming Private Limted
Kerale syurveda Limited
Anpllarcedesk indla Frivate Lindted
Equator Appliancees India Privake Limited

K&y Manegertal Personnel [KMP]
Kamalakkannan avindaral- kanaghyg Direcior
Chaten Shankarsl Senl- Director
Anand Frawvin Pande (From 221252024
Vaibhav Ashok Rupnar (From 2808 2024)
Meini Ajay Tathar (From S8082024)
Yankata Subbarao Kalva {From 0S06f2034)
Shilpa Kiren Guoudur (Frorm 05/ 08/2024)




ICODEX PUBLIZHING SCLUTIONS LIMITED

[Fermerly knewn 3a leodex Publishing Soktions Private Limited}
CH ;. UT2900P N2 BP LG TEATD

Hotes farming part of fnancial stalemants for the year ended 31et March, 2025

tAmount in Lakhs)

Redatives oF Key Managerial Persons {KMP's)
Likeaty Kanhan- Spouss of Kemalakksnnen Govirders|
Kala Sani- Spause of Chetan Shankaral Sonl
Presm Kumar Soni- Son of Ghetan Shenkarlal Soni
Indira Govindarsj-koher of Kemelakkanmen Sovindara]
Kalalvan| Mejurmnda=Sisler of Kamalakkannan
Karimozhi-Sistar of Kemalakkannan

Transactions during the year with ralaled partias

Year Ended Year Ended
Fartlculars Reletionshlp 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Loan Takan

Chetan Shar karal Soi Dhiractor 205 1.51

Ladn Ropaid

Chatan Shankaral Soni Dwrector 2,05 1.81

Kamalakkannan Gowirdara) Manegng Director 0.09 2.00

Directors” Remuneration

Chetan Shankaral Sonl Ciractar 27.00 24,00

kamalakkannan Govindaral anaging Direchar 30.00 24.00

Professional Fess

Liberty Kannam Bpouze of 12.00 12,00
Famalekkannan

Indira Govindaraj Tkt aF 9.00 9.00
kamalakkannen

Kalalvanl Majurrdar Slster af 8,00 9.00
Famal akkannan

Kanimazhi Sister of 1631 =
Famalakkannen

Kala San| Spousa af Chetan 12.00 12.00
Shankaral Soni

Premburmar Soni Sun of Chatan 12.05 15.87
Shankarlel Sani

Spark Advisors And Businass Solubions Prvate Limited  |Entities in THractor 9.00 -
Intarestard

Diraeder 3attng Faas

Venkata Subbaran Kalva Dlrectar 2,80 -

Shilpa Klran Sududur Ciractar 280 -

Anand Pande DGiractar 0.50 -

Salary

Vaibhav Rupnar Chief Financlal Crficer Ta7 -

Mohini Talher Compeny Secratary 1.75 -

Expenges incurred on behlaf of the campany and

Relembursed b the director,

Famzlakkannan Govindaraj Managing Diractor 13.02 16,42




WODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTHONS LINMITED
[Formarty known as leodex Pubdishing Selutions Privabe Limited)
CIN : UT200PN201BPLC1TEATO
Hotes forming pert of financisl atetements for tha year endad 31at March, 2025
{Amaount In Lakhs)

henite:

1. Durmg FY 202324, the Dimctors condibubed their time iowards te development of HTML-OPE, an intBngible ssset
Coneeguantly, Rs.21.60 Lakha of te totad Re. 48,00 Lekhe peid hee baen capitalized, whils te emelnng Ra. 26.40 lekhz hee been
charged t the Prfit and Loss atcount 35 expendiune in Directors remunerabion.

' 2. Dwring the F.Y 202425, the Director contribuled their ime towands the developmenl of HTML-OPS, an in‘angible asset|
Consequantly, Re. 740 Lakhe of the total Re.S7.00 Lakhe peid hea bean capitalizad, while the mmeining Ra. 48.70 lakhe has been
charged to the prof ard 1033 acooant 33 expendiure In Direckor remunetstion.

3. Expeneas incurred by &nd ralmiwrsabla by tha compeny are acheal expenditure of the compamy incured through credit carde of the
dirtetits and reimbursed 10 1hem and rt of any parsenal expense of directors provided as pemulsite frming patt of salary.

Cubstanding Bakancas

Particulars Relationship As at 31,03,2025 As at 31,03,2024

Loan Taken
Kamalakkannan Govindara Managing Director - 0.08
Directors Remuneration payable
Cheian Shankarlal Soni Director 2.10 2.50
Kamalakkannan Govindaraj Managing Director - 2.00
Professional Fees Payabla
|Iberty Kannan Spouse of

Kamalakkannan

Govindaraj D.50 1.00
Kala Sonl Spouse of Chetan

Shankarlal Soni 0.10 1.10
Pramkumar Sonl Son of Chetan

‘Shankaral Soni 1.30 1.89
Indira Govindaraj Muother of

Kamalakkannan 1.35 068
Kalgivani Majumdar Siater of

Kamalakkannan D68 =
Spark Advisors And Business Solutlons Privale Limited  |Entities [n Director

Interested 1.98 =
Director Setting Fees
Anand Pande Direcior 0.45 -
Salary Payable
Vaibhav Rupnar Chief Financial Officer 095 -
Maohini Talhar Company Secratary 0.25 -
Expenses incurred on behlaf of the company and
Relembursed to the director Payable
Kamalakkannan Govindaral Managing Director - 0.08

|Hote 2T: Gegment Reporfing Discloburcs

The company exmlusively provides Single sepvices, which |8 Fublishing and IT suppor earvices, As a rasult, ssgment reporing 13 nol
appllcabda. Sagmant reparting is genarslly required fe compaiss previding multlple sendees or business sagmeanl to provide a clear
vigw of the financial parforrmance and Asks ascoctated vdih each asgment. Howevar, sinta the cormpany's apsfalions ane confined o
puabllshing and IT support sences, &l financial Eformation pertaining Lo this single segmanl, meking esgmeant reparting inapplicaie.




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTICGNS LIMITED
(Formarly known as Icodax Publiahing Solutlans Private Limited)

CIN = W72a00PM201 BPLCATERT)

Neoites forming pert of financial sistaments for the year wided 3158 March, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs}

Mobe Z8
The Informalion as mguired o be disckeeed under te Micro, Smal & Madium Enterprizes Dhevelopment Ael, #0068 has been
determined o ha extent auch parllea heve bean loertifizd en the basis of e infornmatian available with the Company and pravided)

by the Paries,

Particulars

Ax gt
31.03,2025

An gt
31.03.2024

Principal amount outstanding

1.3

1.5

Interest on principal amount due

The amounl of Interest pald by the buyer In lems of section 18 of the MSME
Davelopment Act, aleng with the amount of the pagmer meds Lo the supplier
beyond lhe appointed day during mach accounting yearipaeriod

The amaunl of interast due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which hawe basn paid bul bayond the sppointed day during the weark but without|
adding tha Intareat specified undar MEME Development fut

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each
accounting year/period

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, unbl auch dete when the imteraat duss es abowve are ectually pald o the
small enleratlee, for the purposc of disallowsnce es 8 deductible expendilure|

under ascton 23 of the M3ME Development Act

Nete: Interest will be paid &3 and when the vendeor will demand.

Mote 29; Other dischkosures for income in foreign curmency

Particulars

Ag at
31.03.2025

A= ot
31.03.2024

Earnings in Foreign Currancy
Valug of EXport Sendes:
Rawanue from Operations

M4 g2

1.040.07

Note 3 Dpermting Lenss
8. Tha Compary haa taken pramlese under operating leases arangerment far which are non cancdloble by sither party, The details of

e leETE pEyTEAL o8 &% under

Due afler 5 year

Particulars As at As at
31052025 71.03.2024
During the Year - 5887
Within ane year of 1he Balance Sheet Date - 58,99
Dua in a perind 1 yeer o 5 year - 16.00

Lakhs,

Nete! Out of R 59.57 Lakhs Fs_ 2602 Lakhs capltalisad under "capilal work in progress® and Ra. 08
for rate diffarance. And therefore deblt to profit ard loes under the haad othar expenses, Rent sxpenies appearng as Rs, 32.85

0 Lakhs racalved credlt nole

b, At Laxsas

The cranpany has operating [ease far afflee premises, Ihls 1= renewable on periodic basis and are canceflable by giving a notice
percd of 2 nonthe. The compeny hee recegnieed fallowing expersaes agslnet thie legee.

Particulars

As at

As at
31.03.2024

Total lea=a paymsnts moognzed in the Slatament of Profil and Losa for all kasas

31.03.2025
LENE]




ICODEX PUBLISHING SCLUTIONS LIMITED
[Formerty known 68 Icodex Publishing Selulione Private Limibed)
TN : UT2HI0PND01BPLC T6ATD
Hotas Toeming part of financial atelamants for tha year sndad 312t March, 225
(Amount In Lakhs)

Note 31: Dischosurs reletad Lo employee banafits

L

Lad

Ln

Tre comany has clagsthed varous employes beneflis a3 under:

[A) Deflned contdbution plens.

1] Pravidend Fund

I} Employars Contribution to Employes Stabe Ineurence Corparation (ESIC)

The Preascend Tund and pension scheme are operated by regional P Commissioner, Linder the scheme, the Campany is required o
cantribule & epacified parcantege of paymll coet ko the mtreament echemes te fund the bansdite.

The Company as recognised 1ha following amaunls In the Statement of Froflt and Loxs:

An Bt As gt
Farticulars 31.03.2025 3.03.2024
Con:ritustion 1o Providend fund 16.91 1316
Conidbuten 18 Emplevees State Insurance Corporatlon (ESIC 0.41 0.24

{B) Ratirement defined plans

Gratulty

The Compaty stould provide for grat ity for employess In idla 23 per the Payment of Gratuly Acl, 1872, Emplovess who arg In
conlinwoue asrvice for 8 paricd of § yeara ere aligibla for greluiby. The amount of gretuity payable on retimment’ lcrmination is the
employess ksl drawn baslc salary por month comouted prapotionataly far 16 days salary mudbplied for the number of years of
aarvlca, aubject to a payment e=ding of IMR 30,00, k0,

Raged on the actuardal waluation obfalned In this reapect, the follesing tAtde sgls cut the deteile of the employes banefit oigetion as
Bl balance sheet date:

Tarticulurs Far the year coded Fur the year ended
31 Marck 7025 31 Murch 2024

Ch vy i prewent voloe of Widigalivos
PEreacnt value of chlgution 35 4t the beponing of e peried 1439 a3t
Ircrosl caat 139 T7
Curreml servicy cos 619 4.9%
Benefits paid - -
Actiadal (Cuind ! Losd un abligtiong 6.00 258
Proaent value of ahHeatbn ax at the snd of the nenad 2797 1499

Ackoariel (Gain} / Loss recopodacd

Agbaarial (Geinp s lags for the period — Cbligathas G500 288
Aciaarial (3eing £ Losa far tbe pericd — Plam pesete - .

Letud [CGuin f Loy Lo the peoivd 600 258
Swzncind (Gning £ Lo reeaenised in the period LAl 2.8

Lnmzornised setmaszial (Gaim S Losa at the cnd of de pocised = 2

Antoursl b be cecogrided in the Balagee Sheet

et value ol b lgmeion el ihe end ol petbod 2397 14.39
Fair velue of the plan aascts at the cnd of period

Burplus ! (Dedivil)y [27H7) {14.38)
Cuarrenr iabilicy LAL 20K
Memegarremt Hahility 2184 1229
Unrzoopnisesd pasr Brvic: oosl - -
Amiunt oot rsGopoisad a8 aseer (Pace 39T Limi) - .
Net pagzt ! (linkilily) recopnised in hulunce sheal (27 By [14. 35,
Expenae recopndsed in the statement of proflt and Ivap

Currant eevics cost w19 A
Pact service cost - -
Iniberegt coar 134 i
Apharinl (Gaimn) / Loss recppmisad 4o the pedaed &0 1ER
Ewpcnecs recoemiecd in the staterment of noofit & oss at the =nd of period 13.58 B.0%

Recomciliativn of net aeae  {liabibty] recopndsed

Met assel  {liabilily) nsagniacd ar e bepinning of the peried (14,330 {5.300
Benefits directhy prid by Croompamy = -
Expénze. foopnized at the end of porisd {13.58) 12.08)

Mer gagct ¢ {linhiliby] secoemived ut dhe end ol e peood 127,57 114.38)




1CODEX FUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formarly known &a [codex Fubllahing Solutlona Private Lirbed)
CIM : UT2000PNZ015PLEITEET)
Netes forming part of Hnanchal skatetenls for fhe year etded 31st March, 2025

{Arsount Ih Lakhs)

& Actusrial assumptions:
For the vear ¢nded For the vear soded
31 march 2025 31 Morch 2024
Mortality table IATM (2012-14) Ul LATM (2012-14) 1t
Disoount mie {p) 5.45% 7.10%,
Salary escalslion rala (p.a) 15%, s For the Aout those | 157 p.a. thr te fost thre=
years 86 §% poa thereafler yurh el 5% .
thancatter
Expected mbs of retum an wypeby (7.2, ™A HA
Retirement Age {in yeam) 18 L1
| Attrition Taly [p.a) ELLE 1N 0N

1C} Privilege leavs assumplions based oh achuarlal valuadlons

The Company fas carmod cut achanal valuation of piviege |eave aasuhplion accordingly the Delow dischosuras are limited to

appliceble tacles Imm actuarial

Tha liahility towerdes companested sbeencaa (piviege leawvae) for the yeer endad 31at March, 2025 are beasd on aclural valuation
carmed out by ualng prjected sccruel berefit mathod and deblied o Profit srd Loee eccount Re 0.9% Lakhs in finercial year 31st)

March, 20235,

Summaery of Resulta

Tha valuation results as at 29 March, 2025 and 34 Manch, 2024 are suramarized In the tables hepew @

Particulars For the year ended For the year andad
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Defined Beacfit Obligation (DBO) 6,715,811 5,25,094

Fair vahuo of plan Asects g |

Net 1iuhiligy £ (Asaet] Recopmisel in thefulmes Ehest &, 15,811 5,25,984

Current / Mom-{lumment hifimeuban 200,348 1, 72,015

Non Current Liebilityr 4,15463 3,653,979

Linbility / {Asset) Recognised in theBalance Sheel 615,811 5,25 904
= Plan Froviglam

Tre benefits valred n this Repor are surnmarized bekw:

Valuation Data A1-Mar-25

Sponsoring Employer iCodex Publishing Solutions Pwt. Lid.
Type of Plan Other Long Term Bensfit Flan

Plan Salary Monthly Basic

Mormal Retirernent Age 5B years

Leave Cycle 1 January to 31 December

Mo, af d&ys consldersd N a mont 30 days

During serélea Mot Allowed

Encashment A separalion Allowed

Encashment formula Last drawn Plan Salary/30 * Leave Balance
For encashment 45 days

Accumulation Limits For availmant |45 days

Leave In excess of accumulation limits Lapsed Bt the end of the leave cycle
Annual Rste of Accrusl 24 days

Carry forward alkowed 1o next lesve cyde 15 days

Leave availment during service Allowed

Vesting Period MNone




ICODEX PUBLISHING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
[Formerly kmown a8 keodsx Fublishing Solutions Private Limiied)
CIN : UTiSQIPRED1ARLCT TEETY
Notes farming part of financlal statements hor tha yaar anded 31at March, 2025

[Amount in Lakhs)

3 Tha principsl finenclal & demoprephlc essumptions used in the valuation are as Tollows!

Financial Assumptors 31;;25 31‘:;;;24
iscount Rate (p.a.} FA5% A0
15.00% p.a. for tha 5.3 poa. for tha
Salary Estalation Rata (p.a) first lhres years and Nrat three yaars and
5.00% p.a. 5.00% pa.
Expectad Retum an Asgets (p.a.) MN.A. N.A,
. " As Bt A% at
Demegraphic Atsumptions 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Mortality 1ALM (2012-14)UN. IALM (2012-14)
Atirition Reate (p.a.) 30.00% 30.00%
Availment Retio (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00%
Retimmant Ags {in years) 56 58
Note 32: Minlmum Alemate Tax (MAT Cradit Entithkrment)
Aa at As at
particulara 31,03,2025 31.03.2024
Opening MAT credit entitlement 124,75 2830
Add: Entitbernant during the yaar - 85,51
Ardd: Earlber year endl-lemert - 20 .44
Less: Utilised during the year (124 25) -
Closing MAT credit entifjamant " 124,23

Nota 33: Frevioua Year Flgures
NECEEEATY.
As pet our ghached eporl of gvars dabs

For JMKEK & Co.

(Earfiar known as JMK & Co}
Crarared Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 1204534

/=
Jitendra Doshi
Partuer
Mambarship No : 151274
LCHN: 26151274BMJILG420

Date: DB-G7-2025
Place: Puna

Far and on Behalf of Boerd of Diractors of
KCODEX PUBLISHING S0LUTIONS LIMITED

Mr:
DIN: 31442058
Wanaging Ditestor

Chief Flnancial ONcer

/ _.ilf‘#‘fﬂ-&"jit"’—'?.—

malakkannan Govindra)

r. Valbhaw Ashok Rupnar

Fravioss years figures have been regroupcd wof reckassMled o confirm with the carrenl vearg' presantation wherever considered)

Mr. Chetan Sanl
DIN; 734127
Whola-time Director

e

M= Mohind Tadhar
Compamy Sacretry
M. Mo. ACE GZ0E0




